
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Minutes – June 3, 2019 

B. Disbursements 

    1.   General Operations Disbursement Claim No. 19-09 $290,319.35 

C. Budget to Date – May 2019 

D. Authorization of Payment - MNSPECT Invoice 2019 

E. Amendment #1 to Anoka County CDBG and HOME Investment Partnership 

Program Cooperative Agreement  

F. Contractor’s Licenses 

G. Correspondence 

7. PRESENTATION  

A.  MS4 Annual Report 

8. POLICE REPORT 

9. PARKS AND RECREATION REPORT 

10. ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 

A.  Resolution 19-13 Authorizing Submittal of the City of Spring Lake Park 2040  

      Comprehensive Plan to the Metropolitan Council 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Approval of First Amendment to Cellular Tower Lease with T-Mobile 

B.  Authorize to Purchase New Traffic Speed Notification System/Signs 

12. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

13. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

14. REPORTS 

A.  Administrator Reports 

15. OTHER 

16. ADJOURN 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

AND DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person.  Longer presentations 

must be scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address.  Meetings are 

video recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the 

microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.”  

Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under 

advisement for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a 

proposed project.  This is not a time to debate the issue. 

 

The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 

 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 

 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project.  

Those wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes.  In cases 

where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective 

opinions voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is 

representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 

 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 

 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions 

of the presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will 

close the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until 

the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.  No further public input will be received at 

that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on June 3, 2019 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2. Roll Call    

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

   

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Attorney Thames; Parks and 

Recreation Director Rygwall; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant 

Gooden 

 

Visitors: Legends of Spring Lake Park Residents - (1066 County Highway 10 NE) 

 Kevin Maquehe   Apt. #236 

 Debra Roger   Apt. #137 

 Karen Westheld   Apt. #212 

 Richard Boldt   Apt. 

 Ron McGilard   Apt. #231 

 Mary Stevens   Apt. #445 

 Christine Maker   Apt. #114 

 Judy Hamilton   Apt. #435 

 Corrine Greene   Apt. #427 

 James Howard   Apt. #340 

 Barbara Miller   Apt. #439 

 Joan Morphew   Apt. #145 

 Mary Andersohn  Apt. #321 

 Nancy Bellamy   Apt. #401 

 Anita Carney   Apt. #431 

 Nikki Wick   Apt. #221 

 Dudley Brye   Apt. #134 

 Lois Hael   Apt. #143 

 Joyce and Marie Frye  Apt. #125   

  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda  

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested the approval and waiving of fee for a temporary 1-day liquor license for 

Kraus-Hartig VFW/Beyond the Yellow Ribbon event on July 13, 2019 to be added to the Consent Agenda as 

Item 6I. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested that the resignation letter from Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall be 

added as Item 10C and a request for a City Council work session be added as Item 10D to the agenda.  

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor  

 

James Howard, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, informed the City Council that he and several other 

residents of the Legends of Spring Lake Park have numerous concerns with the operation of the building.  He 

stated that the building has a variety of ages living there along with small children. 

 

Mr. Howard addressed his concerns with the handicap accessibility access points and on the main floor of the 

building.  He stated that there are many safety issues and appears to be an accumulation of small children, pets 

and teens gathering in the garage, lobby and media areas of the building.  He reported that the elevator is often 

full of children. 

 

Mr. Howard expressed that he does not feel there are enough security cameras in the hallways and has many 

safety concerns as to procedures in case of an emergency.  He would like further explanation and instructions 

as to what to do in case of a major emergency. 

 

Mr. Howard reported that the electric bills are lacking detailed information such as usage amounts, taxes and 

rates.  

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if these issues have been brought the attention of the management and 

Dominium.  Mr. Howard reported that they have been and a confirmation is always received but no feedback 

or follow up is reported. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if the signed lease agreement explains the utility bills. The 

consensus of the residents, that were present, was that many have not received their signed copies of their leases 

and the lease does not explain the utility bills. 

 

Richard Boldt, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, expressed his concerns with the inspections that were 

completed in the building during construction and the inspection service that is currently being used by the 

City.  He stated that there are several safety issues that do not meet code according to the American Disability 

Act. 

 

Mr. Boldt reported that there needs to be better clean up at Triangle Park with the number of geese and ducks 

in the park.   

 

Ron McGilord, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, expressed his concern with the age requirement for the 

building. He stated that he has noticed that there are all ages and witnessed an incident in the hallway with a 

large group of people being unruly.  He is concerned with the young population and ethnic backgrounds that 

live in the building. 

 

Corrine Green, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, reported that she witnessed walls in the building that 

had raw eggs thrown at them and she stated she does not feel secure in the building.   

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired if the eggs were thrown inside the building at the walls and if the building 

had a key card security system.  Ms. Green stated that the eggs were inside the building and there had been two 

incidents that she witnessed. She stated that residents do have a card for the doors but often times the doors are 

propped open.  

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as to how many police calls have been made to the Legends.  

Police Chief Ebeltoft stated that there has been an increase in calls to the building. He stated that he could not 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

provide an exact number at this time.  

 

Joan Morphew, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, stated that she inquired how many children live in the 

building when she moved in and was informed that there were not many.  She stated that she did not expect 

several multiple families to be living in the apartments.  She reported that she feels the building is getting rough 

and does not feel safe. She reported being unhappy that there is a four-month penalty to get out of their lease 

agreement. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff asked that Administrator Buchholtz explain the age 50 plus affordable 

living requirements.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained that the Planned Unit Development ordinance one resident has to be 50 

years old or older living in the building. He stated that Dominium informed the City that the building will offer 

amenities that were designed for residents 50 years or older.  He stated that the City was informed that the 

building was not designed for young families. 

 

Resident Jean, Legends of Spring Lake Park, reported that she knows of an apartment with six children under 

the age of eight with two adults living in a three-bedroom apartment.  She reported that she feels the building 

is not safe and she personally does not feel safe. She reported that the parking lots are at full capacity and 

parking on the streets is getting full at times. 

 

Mr. Howard stated he looked at other Dominium properties before moving into the Legends of Spring Lake 

Park and he did not see children at the other locations. He stated that he saw more of a senior community living 

at the other locations.  He stated that he feels that the Spring Lake Park location is filling the apartment spaces 

with anyone and catering the needs of small children rather than that of the senior population.  

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that he recalled the discussions with Dominium in the early stages of the project 

and when asked about children in the building, it was explained that it would be responsible adult grown 

children who may move back to assist their aging parent for a short amount of time.  He stated that it was 

explained that it would not be adolescent children living in the building.   

 

Mayor Hansen stated that she recalled there was a specific age range that was discussed. 

 

Mary Stevens, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, reported that she and her husband toured the Legends in 

February.  She noted the amount of snow in the parking lots and the terrible ice patches. She stated that she 

informed the management and her concerns with the parking lots.   

 

Debra Rogers, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, reported that she has informed management of her 

concerns and that she does not feel safe in the building.  She reported that she has witnessed suspicious activity 

of people coming and going in the building. She stated that she thinks that drugs are being sold. 

 

Ms. Rogers expressed her concern with the recent rent increase that takes effect on July 1, 2019.  She stated 

that the increase amounts are different for some residents and some residents did not receive rent increase 

notices. She stated that the residents have not even lived in the building for a year.  She stated that the residents 

received one month notice of the rent increase. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as to how many of the units are leased.  The residents stated that 

the all the units are leased however all residents may not be moved into the building at this time. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

Judy Hamilton, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, stated that she feels she was misled with the advertising 

of the Legends and the apartment building is not senior living. She reported that children are riding bikes and 

trikes in the hallways and she often sees up to six school age children waiting for the school bus or a ride every 

day.   

 

Chief Ebeltoft advised the residents that can and always should call 911 for any incident or noise complaints. 

He explained the three-strike rule regarding rental properties and the property could lose their rental license if 

the problems continue after letters are sent. 

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that he is very embarrassed and upset to hear the complaints. He stated that he 

would like the Council to direct staff to start investigating the issues that were brought up and to meet with 

management and Dominium representatives to correct the issues.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that much investigation work needs to be done and a meeting with Dominium 

will take place to hear their response. He stated that the investigation has started on many of the issues and 

Dominium will have an opportunity to respond and address the concerns. 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that she has received many calls from the Legends residents and has been working with 

Administrator Buchholtz to start addressing the concerns.  She said it will take time to work on the issues and 

to get answers. 

 

Mr. Boldt stated that he has court case pending regarding the rental inspection validity and the building codes 

being followed correctly.   

 

Mr. Boldt stated that the demographics of the building overall are very diverse and there are many generations 

and nationalities within the building community.  

 

Barbara Miller, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, stated that she specifically moved back to Spring Lake 

Park to live in the building. She stated how disappointed she was the building and all the issues.  She stated that 

something needs to be done with the residents concerns so that Spring Lake Park is a great place again.  

 

Christine Baker, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, reported that she witnessed an incident in the hallway 

while taking out her garbage.  She did not feel comfortable or safe with the people in the hallway and she turned 

back to her apartment with her trash.  She reported that there are no cameras in the hallways. 

 

Mary Stevens, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, reported that she witnessed a resident going through the 

trash in the garage when she was going out to run errands. She reported that when she came back after an 

extended time, the individual was still going through the trash bins. She stated she felt very uncomfortable. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft provided a friendly reminder that it is recommended to shred any important documents that are 

thrown out and reminded the residents to call and report any suspicious activity so it can be investigated. 

 

Nancy Bellamy, Legends of Spring Lake Park resident, reported that she entered the elevator one day and 

encountered a large pit bull on a leash with its owner but the owner was having a hard time controlling the dog.  

She stated that she has watched teenagers follow residents in the building. She stated she has concerns for her 

safety. 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – May 20, 2019 

B. Resolution 19-11 – Resolution of Appreciation – Joyce Mooney 

C. Contractor’s Request for Payment No. 4-5/Final – 2018 Well No. 4 and 5 Maintenance Project 

D. Authorization to close City Hall on Friday, July 5, 2019 

E. Sign Permit 

F. Business License – 2 AM 

G. Contractor’s Licenses 

H. Correspondence 

I. Approval of Waiving Fee for Temporary 1 Day Liquor License – Kraus Hartig VFW – Beyond 

the Yellow Ribbon Event- July 13, 2019 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. ROLL CALL 

VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

7.  Public Hearing 

 

A.  Ordinance 452 Adopting Fee Schedule 

 

Administrator Buchholtz provided a copy of Ordinance 453, An Ordinance Adopting Fee Schedule for the City 

of Spring Lake Park. He reported that the fees that were amended are related to the building inspection services.  

He stated that the new fees are consistent with the fees charged by the Building Inspection Services contractor, 

MNSPECT, LLC. pursuant to the contract. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the staff recommends approval of Ordinance 453.  

 

Mayor Hansen opened the public hearing at 8:30 PM.  There was no discussion from the floor. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The public hearing was closed at 8:30 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER DELFS TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 452 ADOPTING FEE 

SCHEDULE FOR THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

8. Public Works Report 

 

Public Works Director Randall reported that the Public Works Department has been collecting garbage and 

recycling in the parks; dragging the ballfields and mowing the parks on a daily basis.  He reported that the 

Department has been patching pot holes throughout the City and curbing has been poured from the water main 

breaks that occurred over the winter. 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

Mr. Randall reported that he attended safety training and a meeting with Park Construction regarding the 

Hy-Vee construction. He reported that the Osborne Road Trail project will start after July 4, 2019. 

 

8.  Ordinances And/Or Resolutions 

 

A.  Resolution 19-12 Amending Conditional Use Permit for 1630 County Road 10 NE  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City received a Conditional Use Permit application from the 

Yelena Marantsman to amend a conditional use permit application to expand the operation of a daycare 

center at 1630 County Road 10 NE.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Ms. Marantsman applied to the City for the same CUP amendment 

in 2014.  He stated that while the CUP amendment was approved in 2014, she was unable to secure a lease 

for the space within the building to execute the expansion.  He stated that pursuant to City Code, if no action 

is taken on a CUP within one year, the CUP expires.  He stated that since that time, Ms. Marantsman has 

purchased the building at 1630 County Road 10 NE from former owner Gabuk Properties LLC., thereby 

securing the space for the expansion. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the building, built in 1989, is approximately 12,750 square feet in 

size and consists of four lots of 0.25 acres, or one-acre total.  He stated that the front of the building is 

currently occupied by Little Bees Child Center while the rear of the building is vacant.  He reported that 

the building is abutted by the Spring Lake Terrace Mobile Home Park to the south, the Hy-Way House 

Hotel to the west, a strip mall to the east (where Life Prep Academy is located), and retail/office uses to the 

north. He stated that Little Bees Child Care is currently licensed for 83 children, although average daily 

attendance is less than that.  He stated that the property is zoned C-1, Shopping Center Commercial and a 

daycare facility is a conditional use in the C-1 zoning district.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Ms. Marantsman is proposing to expand the child care center to 

accommodate after-school care for school age children and to provide additional indoor play area for the 

non-school age children.  He stated that the proposed expansion is approximately 1,900 square feet, of 

which 800 square feet would be for a gymnasium to allow for indoor play in inclement weather.  He stated 

that the remaining square footage would accommodate a school age classroom (900 square feet) and an 

office (200 square feet). He stated that Ms. Marantsman would also enlarge the outdoor play area by an 

additional 1,000 square feet. He noted that the playground expansion would cross over onto the property of 

the owner to the east of the playground. He suggested that a condition be added for the applicant to obtain 

a lease agreement with the property owner to avoid any future trespass issues.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the parking requirements for the building are one space per employee 

plus five additional spaces per building equating to 17 parking spaces. He stated that the property has 

adequate parking to meet the City’s parking standard.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Section §153.202 of the City of Spring Lake Park zoning code 

outlines the requirements to approve a conditional use permit. He stated that the City Council may then 

authorize the conditional use permit, provided the applicant has provided evidence establishing the 

following: 

 

 a.  The proposed use at the particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide   

                  a service or facility which is in the interest of public convenience and will contribute to the    

                  general welfare of the neighborhood or community. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

 

The applicant stated that Little Bees Child Care has been in business since 

2005 and has a good reputation within the Spring Lake Park community. She 

stated that the expansion will provide an additional option for care for parents 

with school-age children, as well as provide an indoor play area option for all 

children under care. 

 

 b. The use will not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the     

                  health, safety, morals or general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity or       

                  injurious to property values or improvements in the vicinity. 

 

 The applicant stated that the expansion of the Little Bees Child Care will not      

       have a detrimental effect on person residing or working in the vicinity or 

injurious to property values or improvement in the vicinity as the area 

surrounding the childcare facility is commercial in nature.  She reported that 

having high quality childcare options available to the community enhances the 

quality of life of Spring Lake Park, making it a more desirable place to live, and 

thereby improving property values. 

 

c.  The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this     

      chapter for the district in which the prosed use is to be located.  

 

      A daycare use is a conditional use (permitted with reasonable conditions)    

      within the C-1 zoning district. 

 

 d.  The use is one of the conditional uses specifically listed for the district in which is to be  

                  located. 

 

                 A daycare use is listed as a conditional use within the C-1 zoning district. 

 

 e.  The proposed use shall not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other  

                  property in the immediate vicinity. 

 

                   Little Bees Childcare has been operating from its current location since 2005. 

                   There have been no complaints from neighboring property owners over the 

         past five years regarding the conduct of this business. 

 

 f.   The use will not lower property values or impact scenic views in the surrounding area. 

       

The expansion will be taking place within the boundaries of the existing 

building. Staff has determined that there will be no negative impacts to 

property values or scenic views. 

 

 g.   Existing streets and highways and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate  

                   anticipated traffic. 

 

The property is serviced by County State Aid Highway 35, which has capacity 

to handle traffic generated from this small expansion to the Little Bees 

Childcare operation. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

 

 h.   Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use.

        

Staff has calculated a parking need of 17 spaces. The site has adequate parking 

to accommodate the ordinance requirement. 

 

 i.   The use includes adequate protection for the natural drainage system and natural      

                   topography. 

 

No new impervious surface will be added as part of this project. 

 

 j.   The proposed use includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, 

      dust, noise or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

 

The proposed plan, plus the proposed conditions, will address this requirement. 

 

 k.  The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density  

      standards. 

 

The proposed expansion of the Little Bees Childcare is well within the expected 

density of a commercial district. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council approval 

of the conditional use permit with the following conditions: 

 

1. Maximum occupancy of children permitted will be based on available play 

area (50 square feet per child). 

2. Applicant shall provide a copy of lease with the property owner of 1628 

County Road 10 NE that permits the existing and expanded outdoor play 

area to be partially located on the 1628 County Road 10 NE property. 

3. Expanded play area must be enclosed with a minimum 5-foot-high non-climbable fence. 

4. Applicant must obtain any necessary building permits. 

5. Applicant must obtain a certificate of occupancy from the City prior to 

occupancy of the expanded space. 

6. Hours of operation shall remain as Monday through Friday, 5:30am to 6:00pm. 

7. Applicant shall comply with all Federal and State statutes, laws, rules and regulations, as 

well as all City codes, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired who would carry the insurance if part of the playground is on the 

adjoining property.  Administrator Buchholtz stated that the liability language will be included in the lease 

agreement and typically the maintenance would be up to the tenant. 

 

Councilmember Nelson suggested that a condition be added to state that if there is termination of the lease or 

ownership changes, the City must be notified. Administrator Buchholtz stated that the wording could be added 

to condition number two. 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 9 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 19-12 AMENDING 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 1630 COUNTY ROAD 10 NE WITH THE FOLLOWING 

CONDITIONS: 1.) MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY OF CHILDREN PERMITTED WILL BE BASED ON 

AVAILABLE PLAY AREA (50 SQUARE FEET PER CHILD); 2.) APPLICANT SHALL PROVIDE A 

COPY OF A LEASE WITH PROPERTY OWNER OF 1628 COUNTY ROAD 10 NE THAT PERMITS 

THE EXISTING AND EXPANDED OUTDOOR PLAY AREA TO BE PARTIALLY LOCATED ON THE 

1628 COUNTY ROAD 10 NE PROPERTY. THE OWNER OF 1628 COUNTY ROAD 10 NE NOTIFY THE 

CITY OF OWNERSHIP CHANGES OR TERMINATION OF LEASE TO 1628 COUNTY ROAD 10 NE; 

3.) EXPANDED PLAY AREA MUST BE ENCLOSED WITH A MINIMUM FIVE-FOOT-HIGH NON-

CLIMBABLE FENCE; 4.) APPLICANT MUST OBTAIN ANY NECESSARY BUILDING PERMITS; 5.) 

APPLICANT MUST OBTAIN A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FROM THE CITY PRIOR TO 

OCCUPANCY OF THE EXPANDED SPACE; 6.) HOURS OF OPERATION SHALL REMAIN AS 

MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY 5:30 AM TO 6:00 PM; 7.) APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL 

FEDERAL AND STATE STATUTES, LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS, AS WELL AS ALL CITY 

CODES, ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED.  

 

9.  New Business 

 

A.  Approve Listing Agreement with Summerhill Commercial for sale of 525 Osborne Road NE 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that staff is seeking authorization to enter into a listing agreement with 

Summerhill Commercial Real Estate, LLC for the sale of the 525 Osborne Road NE property. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City acquired the property at 535 Osborne Road on September 

6, 2018 from the North Suburban Hospital District in lieu of cash as part of the District’s dissolutions.  He 

reported that it has been City’s intent to sell the property for commercial development.  He stated that the 

property is guided as commercial in the City’s comprehensive plan and is zoned C-3, Office Commercial, 

on the official zoning map. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that staff sent an inquiry out to a number of commercial realtors seeking 

proposals for listing the 525 Osborne Road property.  He stated that Summerhill Commercial was the only 

realtor to submit a proposal.  He reported that he and Executive Assistant Gooden met with Peter 

Kordonowy, President and CEO, and Andy Richards, Senior Associate, about the property.  He stated that 

both Peter and Andy felt was a lot of potential for the site and that it was a highly marketable, considering 

that the City has civil plans for the site as well as completed Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the listing agreement calls for a commission of 5% of the selling 

price (6% if an outside cooperative broker is involved in securing a buyer for the property.)  He stated that 

the agreement is for a 12-month term and there is no cost to the City if the property is not sold. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that staff recommends approval of the listing agreement with Summerhill 

Commercial Real Estate, LLC. subject to contract review and approval by the City Attorney.  

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired what would happen if the property is not up to the brokers 

standards for marketing can the City remove themselves from the contract. 

Attorney Thames stated that the contract is a one-year listing and the brokers are willing to work with the 

city and potential new buyers. He stated that ending the contract before it the term is up, would be a breach 

of contract.   



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 10 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reminded the City Council that the Council has purchase agreement authority and 

it would be up to them to approve the usage and zoning based on the comprehensive plan.  

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH 

SUMMERHILL COMMERCIAL FOR THE SALE OF 525 OSBORNE ROAD NE.  ROLL CALL VOTE: 

ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  CenturyLink Settlement Agreement 

 

Mayor Hansen reported that CentruryLink has announced its intent to exit the cable business.  She stated 

that for over a year, it has stopped actively selling, marketing, and investing in its cable service product.  

She explained that while a CenturyLink customer can technically still order Prism-TV, it will happen only 

if the customer specially requests Prism-TV and agrees to pay an undiscounted rack rate for the service.  

She reported that there has been a significate decrease in the number of cable subscribers over this time. 

 

Mayor Hansen reported that the North Metro Telecommunications Commission (NMTC) was the first to 

notify CenturyLink that it was in violation of their franchise by making no attempt to serve additional 

subscribers.  She stated that since it was CenturyLink’s intent to eventually stop providing cable service all 

together, it made sense to work with CenturyLink on an orderly transition and franchise termination plan 

rather than engaging in a franchise compliance process.  She stated that the Commission entered into 

settlement discussions with CenturyLink. 

 

Mayor Hansen provided a copy of the highlights of the agreement and noted that the NMTC approved the 

settlement agreement at the May 15, 2019 Operations Committee meeting and recommended that the 

Member Cities approve the agreement. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE CENTURYLINK SETTLEMENT 

AGREEMENT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C.  Accept Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall Letter of Resignation and Authorize City Administrator  

      to Start Hiring Process 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that after have serving the residents of Spring Lake Park 

for over 40 years, she was submitting her letter of resignation from her position at the city.  She stated her 

last day of employment will be August 31, 2019.   

 

Mayor Hansen thanked Ms. Rygwall for her dedication to the City and to the Parks and Recreation 

Department. She also thanked Ms. Rygwall’s family for all their years of volunteer work they have 

contributed to the City. 

 

Councilmember Nelson expressed his gratitude and stated what a great inspiration Ms. Rygwall and her 

family has been to the City. He praised her work over the years and her ability to work with all age levels 

to provide excellent park programs and events. 

 

Councilmember Delfs complemented Ms. Rygwall on her success through all the years and what an honor 

it was to work with her on various committees and events.  He stated that the residents of Spring Lake Park 

were very lucky to have Ms. Rygwall in the Parks and Recreation department.  

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 11 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ACCEPT PARKS AND RECREATION 

DIRECTOR RYGWALL RESIGNATION LETTER AND TO AUTHORIZE ADMINISTRATOR TO 

START HIRING PROCESS. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D.  Request City Council Work Session on June 10, 2019 

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested that the City Council hold a work session on Monday, June 10, 2019 to 

discuss the 2040 Comprehensive Plan and the vacant lots on McKinley Street.  The consensus of the Council 

was to meet at 5:30 PM. 

 

10.  Engineer’s Report – None 

 

11.  Attorney’s Report 

 

Attorney Thames reported that he has reviewed the Osborne Road Trail contracts and stated they will be ready 

for approval soon.  

 

12.  Reports  

 

A. Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report  

 

Councilmember Nelson reported that the Hot Rod for Hero’s car show will be held on Saturday, July 13, 2019 

at Kraus-Hartig VFW.  He reported that there will be live music and food available for purchase.   

 

Councilmember Nelson reported that the Beyond the Yellow Ribbon float is all prepared for the Tower Days 

parade. He stated that the committee will be welcoming back members of the military who have been stationed 

overseas back home soon. 

 

13.  Other 

 

A.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the vacant lots on McKinley Street will be discussed at the Council work 

session on June 10, 2019. He asked the Council to bring ideas on how they would like to proceed with the lots. 

Mayor Hansen read a thank you letter from a Spring Lake Park resident who expressed her appreciation to the 

Police and Fire Departments, Allina Medical personnel and a community member who assisted her in recent 

medical emergency at her home. 

 

Director Rygwall provided a summary of the Tower Days events taking place on June 6 – 9, 2019. 

 

14.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ADJOURN. VOICE VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 

           

 

        



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 12 JUNE 3, 2019 

 

                   __________________________________ 

                   Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



Date: May 2019

Page:  1 

Claim Res.#19-09

VOUCHER VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

        66249 ALPHA VIDEO AND AUDIO INC CABLE EQUIPMENT 1,015.00                 

        66250 PEGGY ANDERSON MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 46.40                       

        66251 JOHN ANGELL REIMBURSEMENT 93.75                       

        66252 ASPEN MILLS U. ALLOWANCE 1,227.95                 

        66253 AT & T MOBILITY PHONE SERVICES 859.54                    

        66254 CINTAS MATS 100.23                    

        66255 CITYWIDE BLAINE LOCK & SAFE LOCKS 18.00                       

        66256 CONNEXUS ENERGY UTILITIES 9.49                         

        66257 COTTENS INC SUPPLIES 79.43                       

        66258 DAVE'S SPORT SHOP RECREATION SOFTBALL SUPPLIES 1,173.60                 

        66259 DODGE OF BURNSVILLE NEW SQUAD CAR 23,496.00               

        66260 DOUG OHMAN RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 700.00                    

        66261 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. PUBLISHING 236.50                    

        66262 Electro Signs BILLBOARD REPAIRS 95.01                       

        66263 FINANCE AND COMMERCE PUBLISHING 146.90                    

        66264 JENNY GOODEN REIMBURSEMENT 39.78                       

        66265 GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL INC LOCATES 121.50                    

        66266 HYDRAULIC SPECIALTY INC SUPPLIES/PARTS 214.18                    

        66267 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS LLC SUPPLIES 29.22                       

        66268 MICHAEL LEDMAN RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 303.75                    

        66269 MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY FUEL 1,223.94                 

        66270 MCFOA MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 45.00                       

        66271 MINNESOTA SAFETY COUNCIL RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 504.00                    

        66272 NORTHERN PARTS 37.27                       

        66273 MISCELLANEOUS REC VENDOR RECREATION REFUND 50.00                       

        66274 SLP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE PROTECTION 18,364.00               

        66275 AFLAC PAYROLL 22.17                       

        66276 AMERITAS PAYROLL 37.26                       

        66277 CENTRAL PENSION FUND PAYROLL 780.00                    

        66278 DEARBORN NATIONAL PAYROLL 435.27                    

        66279 DELTA DENTAL PAYROLL 1,479.85                 

        66280 HEALTH PARTNERS PAYROLL 13,211.04               

        66281 L.E.L.S. PAYROLL 229.50                    

        66282 LOCAL 49 PAYROLL 105.00                    

        66283 NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS PAYROLL 72.00                       

        66284 DVS TITLE/REGISTRATION 21.75                       

        66285 ALLEGRA PRINT & IMAGING PRINTING 2,720.98                 

        66286 ANOKA COUNTY LOCAL GOV OFFICIALS MTG 10.00                       

        66287 COTTENS INC SUPPLIES 77.88                       

        66288 INSTRUMENTAL RESEARCH INC APR WTR TESTING 72.00                       

        66289 LITIN PAPER, PKG & CONVERTING SUPPLIES 144.92                    

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

CLAIMS LIST APPROVED AND PAID

GENERAL OPERATIONS



Date: May 2019

Page:  2 

Claim Res.#19-09

VOUCHER VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

        66290 MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY FUEL 913.30                    

        66291 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL WASTE WTR SERVICES 49,464.84               

        66292 CITY OF MOUNDSVIEW 50% SHARE OF LAKESIDE PARK 11,500.00               

        66293 ON SITE SANITATION INC RESTROOMS 21.21                       

        66294 CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK - PETTY CASHPUBLIC UTILITIES CASH DRAWER 100.00                    

        66295 Rockin Hollywoods TOWER DAYS PERFORMANCE 1,250.00                 

        66296 SMITH SCHAFER & ASSOCIATES 2018 AUDIT 13,625.00               

        66297 SLP HIGH SCHOOL JAZZ BAND REC: LAKESIDE PARK PERFORMANCE 300.00                    

        66298 STANTEC ENGINEERING 18,478.65               

        66299 TRUST IN US, LLC DRUG TESTING 125.00                    

        66300 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-MN MONTHLY SERVICES 7,358.15                 

        66301 XCEL ENERGY UTILITIES 51.96                       

        66302 LAVON ETHERINGTON RECREATION REFUND 40.00                       

        66303 MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY FUEL 831.16                    

        66304 ADVANCED GRAPHIX INC NEW SQUAD TRAILOR GRAPHICS 23.50                       

        66305 ASPEN MILLS U. ALLOWANCE 154.65                    

        66306 CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDER LEGAL SERVICES 10,627.37               

        66307 CITYWIDE BLAINE LOCK & SAFE 1"MORETISE 18.00                       

        66308 COMM-WORKS, LLC PARK CAMERAS 125.00                    

        66309 COTTENS INC SUPPLIES 4.49                         

        66310 CROW WING TRANSPORT DOT INSPECTIONS 450.00                    

        66311 DOUG'S POWER EQUIPMENT REGULATOR 73.25                       

        66312 FASTENAL COMPANY PARTS 157.19                    

        66313 HAWKINS WATER TREATMENT WATER CHEMICALS 3,003.31                 

        66314 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS TRUST DEDUCTIBLE 411.61                    

        66315 MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR OVERPAYMENT FINAL WTR BILL 177.66                    

        66316 MINNEAPOLIS SAW PARTS 519.80                    

        66317 CITY OF MINNEAPOLIS APS TRANSACTIONS 185.40                    

        66318 OFFICE OF MN.IT SERVICES FIBER CONNECTION: POLICE 46.40                       

        66319 PERFECT 10 CAR WASH AUTO SERVICES/REPAIR 39.95                       

        66320 SUMMIT COMPANIES ANNUAL SPRINKLER INSPECTION 1,230.00                 

        66321 USS MINNESOTA ONE MT LLC SOLAR SUBSCRIPTION 9,750.62                 

        66322 American Test Center ANNUAL SAFETY INSPECTION 450.00                    

        66323 AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOC. MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 208.00                    

        66324 ANTHONY ZESSMAN RECREATION REFUND 23.82                       

        66325 ASPEN MILLS U. ALLOWANCE/RESERVE EQUIP 67.04                       

        66326 MISCELLANEOUS REC VENDOR RECREATION REFUND 1,990.00                 

        66328 WANDA BROWN-MCGRECK MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 103.09                    

        66329 CADY BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES LABOR PHONE REPAIR 140.00                    

        66330 CENTERPOINT ENERGY UTILITIES 833.98                    

        66331 CINTAS MATS 100.23                    

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

CLAIMS LIST APPROVED AND PAID

GENERAL OPERATIONS



Date: May 2019

Page:  3 

Claim Res.#19-09

VOUCHER VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

        66332 COMCAST MONTHLY SERVICES 105.92                    

        66333 COMPUTER INTERGRATION TECHNOLOGIESCOMPUTER/SOFTWARE UPGRADES 15,721.00               

        66334 CONNEXUS ENERGY UTILITIES 345.14                    

        66335 COTTENS INC PARTS 157.28                    

        66336 DAVE PERKINS CONTRACTING INC SERVICES 6,000.00                 

        66337 KAREN FISKE REIMBURSEMENT 155.00                    

        66338 HYDRAULIC SPECIALTY INC PARTS 225.68                    

        66339 MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY FUEL 1,203.10                 

        66340 METRO SALES SUPPLIES 134.50                    

        66341 MIKE MCPHILLIPS INC STREET SWEEPING 6,370.00                 

        66342 MINNEAPOLIS SAW PARTS/SUPPLIES 12.00                       

        66343 ON SITE SANITATION INC RESTROOMS 80.14                       

        66344 QUILL SUPPLIES 75.18                       

        66345 Robert Ellis RECREATION REFUND 40.00                       

        66346 SCHMIDT CURB COMPANY, INC SERVICES 5,082.00                 

        66347 SPECIALTY SOLUTIONS LLC LANDSCAPING 4,729.22                 

        66348 WALTERS RECYCLING REFUSE SERV ORGANICE/FRESH CONTAINERS 442.92                    

        66349 WARGO NATURE CENTER RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 50.00                       

        66350 XCEL ENERGY UTILITIES 3,510.51                 

        66351 AFLAC PAYROLL 22.17                       

        66352 AMERITAS PAYROLL 37.26                       

        66353 CENTRAL PENSION FUND PAYROLL 780.00                    

        66354 DEARBORN NATIONAL PAYROLL 435.27                    

        66355 DELTA DENTAL PAYROLL 1,479.85                 

        66356 HEALTH PARTNERS PAYROLL 13,050.44               

        66357 L.E.L.S. PAYROLL 229.50                    

        66358 LOCAL 49 PAYROLL 105.00                    

        66359 NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS PAYROLL 72.00                       

        66360 ANOKA COUNTY TREASURY JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 1,635.85                 

        66361 COMPUTER INTERGRATION TECHNOLOGIESMANAGED SERVICES/PROJ MAINT 2,299.00                 

        66362 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. PUBLISHING 48.38                       

        66363 GREENHAVEN PRINTING PRINTING: FIX IT CLINIC MAILING 1,479.99                 

        66364 LITIN PAPER, PKG & CONVERTING SUPPLIES 260.81                    

        66365 MNSPECT AGREEMENT BUILDING SERVICES 7,209.95                 

        66366 SMITH SCHAFER & ASSOCIATES 2018 AUDIT 2,850.00                 

        66367 KENNETH A. TOLZMANN, SAMA 2ND QTR BILLING 9,260.60                 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 290,319.35            

CLAIMS LIST APPROVED AND PAID

GENERAL OPERATIONS

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK



  Date: May 2019

  Page:  4

  Claim Res.#19-09

WHEREAS,

      the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park has considered the foregoing itemized list of 

disbursements; and

WHEREAS,

      the City Council has determined that all disbursements, as listed, with the following exceptions:

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

are proper.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

       that the City Council directs and approves the payment of the aforementioned disbursements 

this _________ day of _______________, 20_______.

Signed: ______________________________________

               Mayor

Councilmembers:

____________________________________       ____________________________________

____________________________________        ____________________________________

ATTEST:

_____________________________________

Daniel Buchholtz, Admin/Clerk-Treasurer



























Invoice

Invoice Date: 6/9/2019
Invoice #: 7865

Bill To:
City of Spring Lake Park
1301 - 81st Avenue NE
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432

Due Date: 6/9/2019

Phone # 9524427520 Fax # 952-442-7521

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

ServicedDescription Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Residential Inspection/Permit Fee 4,318.75 4,318.75
Residential Plan Review 2,278.46 2,278.46
Residential Plumbing Permit Fees 254.80 254.80
Residential Mechanical Permit Fee 350.00 350.00
Commercial Inspection/Permit Fee 8,866.88 8,866.88
Commercial Plan Review Fee 7,778.54 7,778.54
Commercial Plumbing Permit Fee 700.00 700.00
Commercial Mechanical Permit Fee 5,480.48 5,480.48
Sprinkler/Alarm Inspection 1,330.41 1,330.41
Sprinkler/Alarm Plan Review 1,235.38 1,235.38
License/Lead Look-up Fee 17 5.00 85.00
Property Maintenance Complaint 1 75.00 75.00
Special Investigation Fees 307.24 307.24
Postage - General 2.50 2.50

$33,063.44

$33,063.44

$0.00



Permit #
Date 
Out Name

Activity
Category Description

Other 
Description  Valuation   Surcharge  

 Permit 
Fee 

 Plan Review 
Fee 

 Special 
Invest. Site Inspection Copies Re-Inspection License Fee

Permit 
Fee

Plan 
Review 

Additional 
Plan Review

Special 
Invest. Total per Line

SLP-2019-00019 05/14/19 IND SCHOOL DISTRICT 16 1100 NE 81ST AVE COMMERCIAL BUILDING ADDITION 2,000,000.00$   900.00$           11,528.06$      7,493.24$          8,069.64        7,493.24       -          15,562.88           
SLP-2019-00006 05/14/19 FRANCHISE REALTY INTERSTATE 8124 NE HIGHWAY 65 COMMERCIAL BUILDING SIGN 23,442.00$        11.72$             438.92$           285.30$             438.92$    307.24           285.30          307.24     899.78                
SLP-2019-00017 05/13/19 AFFORDABLE DAN HOLDINGS LLC 8299 NE UNIVERSITY AVE COMMERCIAL FIRE FIRE 705.00$             0.35$               10.58$             6.88$                 5.00          7.41               6.88              -          19.29                  
SLP-2019-00014 05/03/19 HY-VEE INC 8101 NE Hwy 65 COMMERCIAL FIRE FIRE 126,000.00$      63.00$             1,890.00$        1,228.50$          1,323.00        1,228.50       -          2,551.50             
SLP-2019-00011 05/31/19 HY-VEE CONTRUCTION 8155 NE HWY 65 COMMERCIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 387,462.50$      193.73$           7,749.26$        5,424.48        -                -          5,424.48             
SLP-2019-00061 05/15/19 CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 8466 NE CENTRAL AVE COMMERCIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 2,314.00$          1.00$               80.00$             56.00             -                -          56.00                  
SLP-2019-00003 05/08/19 HY-VEE CONTRUCTION 8155 NE HWY 65 COMMERCIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 50,000.00$        25.00$             1,000.00$        700.00           -                -          700.00                
SLP-2019-00100 05/16/19 FRANCHISE REALTY INTERSTATE 8124 NE HIGHWAY 65 COMMERCIAL ZONING SIGN 300.00$           210.00           -                -          210.00                
SLP-2019-00075 05/06/19 NORTHERN AUTO REPAIR LLC 1540 NE HIGHWAY 10 COMMERCIAL BUILDING COO 1.00$               200.00$           140.00           -                -          140.00                
SLP-2019-00047 05/02/19 MDS PROPERTIES LLC 8232 HIGHWAY 65 COMMERCIAL BUILDING COO 1.00$               200.00$           140.00           -                -          140.00                
SLP-2019-00036 05/16/19 BOULDER CONTRACTING LLC 8050 NE MCKINLEY ST RESIDENTIAL BUILDING NEW HOME 166,785.62$      83.39$             1,613.72$        1,048.92$          5.00          1,129.60        1,048.92       -          2,183.52             
SLP-2019-00060 05/16/19 TIMOTHY SENARIGHI 8359 NE WESTWOOD RD RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PORCH 3,602.40$          1.80$               112.12$           72.88$               78.48             72.88            -          151.36                
SLP-2019-00018 05/06/19 BRUCE & DEBRA MEWHORTER 8039 NE VAN BUREN ST RESIDENTIAL BUILDING REMODEL 9,500.00$          4.75$               210.16$           136.60$             5.00          147.11           136.60          -          288.71                
SLP-2019-00016 05/14/19 CASSANDRA & STEVE LAFOLLETTE 1130 NE 80TH AVE RESIDENTIAL FIRE FIRE 1,800.00$          0.90$               83.00$             53.95$               5.00          58.10             53.95            -          117.05                
SLP-2019-00064 05/30/19 BRUCE CALLEN 838 NE MANOR DR RESIDENTIAL BUILDING ADDITION 100,000.00$      50.00$             1,171.80$        761.67$             5.00          820.26           761.67          -          1,586.93             
SLP-2019-00046 05/08/19 DONNA SCHMIDT 520 NE MANOR RESIDENTIAL BUILDING DECK 700.00$             0.35$               39.00$             25.35$               27.30             25.35            -          52.65                  
SLP-2019-00015 05/01/19 PAIGE & WENDY ZARBO 858 NE MANOR DR RESIDENTIAL BUILDING DECK 14,000.00$        7.00$               275.52$           179.09$             5.00          192.86           179.09          -          376.95                
SLP-2019-00049 05/02/19 MICHAEL GANTZER 593 NE IONE RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-DOOR 3,500.00$          1.75$               112.12$           5.00          78.48             -                -          83.48                  
SLP-2019-00077 05/20/19 JAMES & MARIA JOHNSON 8310 NE 5TH ST RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-WINDOW/DOOR 9,000.00$          4.50$               193.82$           5.00          135.67           -                -          140.67                
SLP-2019-00103 05/30/19 DANIEL & JANICE KUJAWA 7999 NE QUINCY RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-ROOF 5,000.00$          2.50$               128.46$           5.00          89.92             -                -          94.92                  
SLP-2019-00078 05/16/19 FRANK & ANN RADICHEL 8060 NE HAYES ST RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-ROOF 12,100.00$        6.05$               259.18$           5.00          181.43           -                -          186.43                
SLP-2019-00082 05/17/19 STANLEY URBIK 7928 NE ABLE ST RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-ROOF 11,600.00$        5.80$               242.84$           5.00          169.99           -                -          174.99                
SLP-2019-00062 05/13/19 JAMES L MOEN 1541 NE BALLANTYNE LN RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-ROOF 4,000.00$          2.00$               112.12$           5.00          78.48             -                -          83.48                  
SLP-2019-00059 05/13/19 MICHAEL BEUTZ 539 NE 82ND RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-ROOF 12,000.00$        6.00$               242.84$           5.00          169.99           -                -          174.99                
SLP-2019-00056 05/08/19 JEFFREY STAFFORD 836 NE 83RD AVE RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-ROOF 1,800.00$          0.90$               83.00$             5.00          58.10             -                -          63.10                  
SLP-2019-00072 05/20/19 LARRY & DONNA KAPPELLER 857 NE 84TH AVE RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-SIDE 5,500.00$          2.75$               144.80$           101.36           -                -          101.36                
SLP-2019-00052 05/03/19 HAROLD & DARLENE MATTI 7901 NE MONROE RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-SIDE 18,000.00$        9.00$               340.88$           5.00          238.62           -                -          243.62                
SLP-2019-00048 05/02/19 MARK &SANDRA MILLER TRUSTEE 8037 NE GARFIELD RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-SIDE 3,672.00$          1.84$               112.12$           5.00          78.48             -                -          83.48                  
SLP-2019-00102 05/30/19 KATHLEEN ENGELKE 8270 NE TERRACE RD RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-WINDOW 696.00$             0.35$               39.00$             5.00          27.30             -                -          32.30                  
SLP-2019-00070 05/20/19 DIANE DOUGLASS 813 NE LUND RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-WINDOW 4,200.00$          2.10$               128.46$           89.92             -                -          89.92                  
SLP-2019-00073 05/20/19 JASON KETZ 615 NE MAPLE ST RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY RE-WINDOW 4,200.00$          2.10$               128.46$           89.92             -                -          89.92                  
SLP-2019-00071 05/20/19 JEFFREY & BRENDA FELSON 7721 NE JACKSON ST RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00053 05/06/19 BOULDER CONTRACTING LLC 8040 NE MCKINLEY ST RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00089 05/28/19 TIMOTHY LITTLE 8364 NE LADDIE RD RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00090 05/23/19 LAWRENCE BEY 761 NE 83RD RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00054 05/07/19 CAROLE SCHENDEL 7800 NE TAYLOR RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00055 05/07/19 THOMAS BLOMBERG 8390 NE ABLE RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               50.00$             35.00             -                -          35.00                  
SLP-2019-00051 05/02/19 BRUCE CALLEN 838 NE MANOR DR RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               50.00$             35.00             -                -          35.00                  
SLP-2019-00104 05/30/19 CTW Group 8371 NE 5TH ST RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               120.00$           84.00             -                -          84.00                  
SLP-2019-00057 05/10/19 JAMES KRUEGER 769 NE IONE RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00058 05/10/19 CASSANDRA & STEVE LAFOLLETTE 1130 NE 80TH AVE RESIDENTIAL MECHANICAL MECHANICAL 1.00$               40.00$             28.00             -                -          28.00                  
SLP-2019-00091 05/23/19 LYNN CHRISTENSEN 7945 NE VAN BUREN RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00074 05/17/19 BRUCE & DEBRA MEWHORTER 8039 NE VAN BUREN ST RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00081 05/17/19 ANTHONY FREEMAN 841 NE 81ST AVE RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               49.00$             34.30             -                -          34.30                  
SLP-2019-00050 05/02/19 ANDREW SMITH 626 NE 83RD AVE RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00069 05/20/19 NASIR AL-ALI 7793 NE JACKSON ST RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00079 05/16/19 BRANDON THAYER 512 NE 78TH AVE RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00080 05/16/19 DENNIS F & BONNIE L DURAND TRUSTEE 741 NE 81ST AVE RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00094 05/14/19 CAROLYN LOHMAN 359 NE MANOR DR RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING PLUMBING 1.00$               45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00099 05/15/19 JASON SCHMIDT 817 NE BALLANTYNE LN RESIDENTIAL ZONING DRIVEWAY 45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00096 05/23/19 DAN NORLIN 624 NE 84TH AVE RESIDENTIAL ZONING FENCE 45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00095 05/23/19 KOU LOR 8306 NE LAKEWOOD DR RESIDENTIAL ZONING FENCE 45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  
SLP-2019-00101 05/15/19 KOOM SAB LLC 8407 NE PLAZA BLVD RESIDENTIAL ZONING SIGN 216.25$           151.38           -                -          151.38                
SLP-2019-00076 05/14/19 JASON SCHMIDT 817 NE BALLANTYNE LN RESIDENTIAL ZONING SHED 45.00$             31.50             -                -          31.50                  

05/17/19 PROPERTY MAINTENANCE COMPLAINT 800 82ND AVE NE 75.00$      -                 -                75.00       75.00                  

Please remit payment to $2,981,579.52 $1,410.63 $30,430.49 $11,292.38 $513.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85.00 $21,301.32 $11,292.38 $0.00 $382.24 $33,060.94

Address



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  June 13, 2019 

Subject: Amendment #1 to Anoka County CDBG and HOME Investment Partnership 
Program Cooperation Agreement 

 
In 2007, the City entered into an agreement with Anoka County to administer the CDBG and 
HOME investment partnership programs for the City of Spring Lake Park.  This agreement 
automatically renews.  Due to changes in federal regulations, Anoka County is requesting the City 
approve an amendment to the Cooperation Agreement.  The amendment is included. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Amendment #1 to the Anoka County CDBG and HOME 
Investment Partnership Cooperation Agreement.   
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





  
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT and  

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of _________, 2019 
(“Effective Date”), by and between the County of Anoka, a political subdivision of the State of 
Minnesota, 2100 Third Avenue, Anoka, Minnesota, 55303 (“County”), and the City of Spring Lake 
Park, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Minnesota, 1301 81st Avenue NE, 
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 (“Cooperating Community”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Cooperating Community and the County have determined that it is 
desirable and in the interests of its citizens that the County qualifies as an urban county within the 
provisions of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Title I, of Public Law 93-383, 
as amended (42 USC 5301 et seq) (the “Act”).  
 

WHEREAS, the Cooperating Community and the County previously entered into an auto-
renewable Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) which authorizes the County to participate with 
the Cooperating Community in undertaking, or to assist in undertaking, essential community 
development and housing assistance activities pursuant to the CDBG Entitlement Program and 
the HOME Investment Partnerships Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parties’ Cooperation Agreement provides that, from time to time, as 
federal laws and regulations change, updates to the Agreement may be required to bring the 
terms into compliance with federal HUD regulations; and   

 
WHEREAS, the County intends that identical amendments to cooperation agreements will 

be executed between the County and other cities and townships within the County, thus enabling 
the County to continue to qualify under the Act and remain in compliance with HUD guidance, 
CPD 19-04 issued on March 8, 2019.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stated and 
those contained in the original Cooperation Agreement, the parties agree to amend the 
Agreement as follows: 
 
 
1. Section V. entitled “Special Provisions,” paragraph C. is amended to add the following 

language at the end of the provision: 
  

“If either party refuses to adopt an amendment incorporating changes necessary to meet 
requirements for cooperation agreements set for in an Urban County Qualification Notice 
applicable for a subsequent three-year county qualification period, such failure to comply 
will void the automatic renewal for such qualification period.” 

 
 



2. Section V. entitled “Special Provisions,” paragraph G. is amended to add the following 
language at the end of the provision: 

  
“A unit of general local government may not sell, trade, or otherwise transfer all or any 
portion of such funds to another such metropolitan city, urban county, unit of general local 
government, or Indian tribe, or insular area that directly or indirectly received CDBG funds 
in exchange for any other funds, credits or non-Federal considerations, but must use such 
funds for activities eligible under title I of the Act.”  

 
3. This Amendment is hereby made a part of and shall be amended to the Cooperation 

Agreement of the parties. 
 

4. All other terms and conditions of the original Cooperation Agreement, not modified by this 
Amendment, shall remain in full force and effect.  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the dates indicated. 
 

 
 
COUNTY OF ANOKA 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 

Scott Schulte, Chair 
County Board of Commissioners 

 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 

Rhonda Sivarajah 
County Administrator 

 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
         Christine Carney 
         Assistant County Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

 
CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       Cindy Hansen 
Its:  Mayor 
 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       Dan Buchholtz 
Its:  Administrator 
 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
 
 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 

 







Spring Lake Park MS4 Permit                                   
Annual Public Meeting

June 17, 2019

1

City of Spring Lake Park
June 17, 2019

2019 MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting

Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer Systems (MS4)
• Owned by a State, City, 

Village, or Other Public Entity 
that Discharges to Waters of 
the U.S.

• Designed or used to Collect or 
Convey Stormwater

• Not a combined sewer
• Not part of a Publicly Owned 

Treatment Works (sewage 
treatment plant)

What is an MS4?

Who is Involved with Stormwater Management 
Regulation in Spring Lake Park?

Federal Programs

Watershed 
Management
Organizations

State of 
Minnesota

Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency
• NPDES MS4 Permit
• NPDES Construction 

Stormwater Permit
• NPDES Industrial Permit

• Coon Creek 
Watershed 
District

• Rice Creek 
Watershed 
District

• Metropolitan 
Council

• Department of 
Natural Resources

• State Board of 
Water and Soil 
Resources (BWSR)

NPDES MS4 Permit
Stormwater 

Pollution Prevention 
Plan Document

Watershed 
Management

Plans and Rules

Local Surface 
Water 

Management 
Plan

Stormwater Regulatory Documents that 
Impact Municipal Operations

The Origins of the MS4 Permit
Environmental Protection Agency creates the 

NPDES program based on the 1972 Clean Water 
Act and delegates local authority to..

The Minnesota Pollution Control Agency which 
administers the MS4 program which includes…

The City of Spring Lake Park 

MS4 Permit Coverage Extended March 17, 2014

Basic Components of the MS4 Permit

1. Public Education and Outreach

2. Public Participation and Involvement

3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

4. Construction Site Storm Water Runoff Control

5. Post-Construction Storm Water Management

6. Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping for 
Municipal Operations

6 Minimum Control Measures

1 2

3 4

5 6



Spring Lake Park MS4 Permit                                   
Annual Public Meeting

June 17, 2019

2

Examples of Pollutant Sources
Organic Waste Illicit Discharges

Construction Runoff Chemical Application

How Spring Lake Park Currently Complies 
with the MS4 Permit.

• Partnerships with Watersheds
• City Ordinance and LWMP Requirements
• Implement Enforcement Response Procedures
• Storm Sewer System Map
• Stormwater Related Brochures and Articles
• MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting
• Inspections (Illicit discharge, Construction, and MS4 System)
• Provide a Plan Review Checklist
• Street Sweeping
• Staff Training
• Facilities Inventory Assessment
• Pond Assessment
• MS4 Annual Reports

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Document

Questions?

7 8

9



 

 

Police Report 

May 2019 

Submitted for Council Meeting on June 17, 2019 

 

The Spring Lake Park Police Department responded to six hundred and fifty-eight calls for service for the 

month of May 2019. This is compared to responding to six hundred and nineteen calls for service in May 

2018. 

The police department has started deploying our new speed trailer. As many of you know, the trailer 

was deployed on 81st Ave in the 1400 Block for westbound traffic. With the new trailer we are now able 

to collect much more statistical data. Examples of data that we can collect now are traffic volumes, 

speeds/speed compliance, traffic volumes by days/time of day, etc. During deployment dates June 1, 

2019 to June 5, 2019 a total of 10,228 vehicles were driven on 81st Ave westbound, of these vehicles 

6,869 vehicles were driving the speed limit.  3,203 where listed as “Low Risk Speeding” which is driving 

less than 10 mph hour over the posted speed limit. 153 were listed as “Medium Risk Speeding”, which is 

driving over 10 mph of the posted speed limit and three were listed as “High Risk Speeding”, which is 

driving 20 mph over the posted speed limit. An interesting note was discovered during our first 

deployment of the speed trailer, during the hours of 2 am to 3 am, 100 percent of the vehicles that were 

monitored by the speed trailer were driving the speed limit. As the police department becomes familiar 

with the new speed trailer, I look forward to providing the Mayor and Council more statistical 

information regarding driving habits around our community.  

Investigator Bennek reports handling a case load of thirty-two case for the month of May 2019. Twenty-

six of these cases were felony in nature, five of these cases were gross misdemeanor in nature and one 

case was misdemeanor in nature. Investigator Bennek also continues to monitoring thirteen forfeiture 

cases along with his monthly case load trying to bring all cases to a conclusion as soon as possible. 

Investigator Bennek is adjusting well to his new position of Investigator and is continually learning on a 

daily basis. For further details see Investigator Benneks’ attached report.  

Officer Chlebeck our School Resource Officer reports handling twenty-seven calls for service at our local 

schools for the month of May 2019, along with conducting thirty-six student contacts, two escorts and 



seven follow up investigations into school related issues. Officer Chlebeck noted that school was in 

session for twenty-two days for the month of May. Officer Chlebeck noted that he has been training in 

our new School Resource Officer, Officer Kramer for the upcoming 2019-2020 school year. Officer 

Chlebeck noted that he did conduct nine class presentations on the “Bill of Rights” and how the relate to 

Law Enforcement. Officer Chlebeck noted that Officer Kramer assisted on two of these calls 

presentations as well. Officer Chlebeck indicated that he participated in a class presentation with Anoka 

County Criminal Investigation Division Detective on “Human Trafficking” in our community for the 

Current Events Class. Officer Chlebeck and Officer Fiske also conducted a class presentation to the entire 

3rd grade class at Park Terrace Elementary on “Being safe, calling 911 and just saying no to drugs”. For 

further details, see Officer Chlebecks’ attached report. 

 The Spring Lake Park Police Department Administrative Office Staff continue to remain steadfast in their 

duties, typing and imaging reports, filing, answering and dispensing phone calls for service and 

information, while continuing to address citizen concerns at our “Police Public Walk up- Window”, along 

with other duties that may be assigned on a daily basis.  

The month of May has been a busy month for myself as well, besides handling the day to day operations 

of the police department, I continue to attend meetings on a daily basis representing the City of Spring 

Lake Park and the Police Department. 

This will conclude my report for the month of May 2019. 

Are there any questions?  

 

 



Spring Lake Park Police Department 
Investigations Monthly Report 

 

 
Investigator 

Tony Bennek 

 

May 2019 
 

 

Total Case Load 
 

Case Load by Level of Offense: 32 
 

Felony    26 

Gross Misdemeanor  5 

Misdemeanor   1 

 

Case Dispositions: 
 

County Attorney    3 

Juvenile County Attorney  0 

City Attorney    2 

Forward to Other Agency  0 

SLP Liaison    0 

Carried Over    15 

Unfounded     5 

Exceptionally Cleared   1 

Closed/Inactive    6 

 

Current active Forfeitures  13 

 

 

 



Spring Lake Park Police / School Resource Officer Report 

May 2019 
 

Incidents by School Location Reports (ICRs) Student Contacts* Escorts/Other Follow Up Inv. 

Spring Lake Park High School 26 36 2 7 

Discovery Days (pre-school)     

Lighthouse School     

Park Terrace Elementary School     

District Office     

Able and Terrace Parks (School Related) 1    

School Related     

Miscellaneous Locations     

Totals: 27 36 2 7 

 

 

Breakdown of Reports (ICRs)  

Theft reports (cellphones, iPods, bikes, etc…) 2 

Students charged with Assault or Disorderly Conduct 6 

Students charged with other crimes 3 

Non-students Charged 0 

Warrant Arrests 0 

Miscellaneous reports 16 

 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  June 13, 2019 

Subject: Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
Included with this memorandum is the draft 2040 Comprehensive Plan update.  This update is 
required every 10 years by the Metropolitan Council to ensure development conformity with the 
Metropolitan Council’s 20-year vision document. 
 
Development of a comprehensive plan is no easy feat.  It takes a significant amount of time and 
effort to update the City’s visioning document.  I would like to thank the Stantec, Executive 
Assistant Jenny Gooden, the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the City Council 
and the members of the public which participated in the Comprehensive Plan update. 
 
The attached resolution authorizes submittal of the Comprehensive Plan to the Metropolitan 
Council for formal review.  Once the Metropolitan Council has granted approval of the 
Comprehensive Plan, the City Council will formally adopt the plan. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





RESOLUTION NO. 19-13 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMTTAL OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 2040 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO THE METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes section 473.864 requires each local governmental unit to review 

and, if necessary, amend its entire comprehensive plan and its fiscal devices and official controls at least 

once every ten years to ensure its comprehensive plan conforms to metropolitan system plans and ensure 

its fiscal devices and official controls do not conflict with the comprehensive plan or permit activities that 

conflict with metropolitan system plans; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes sections 473.858 and 473.864 require local governmental units to 

complete their “decennial” reviews by December 31, 2018; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, Planning Commission, and City Staff have prepared a proposed 

Comprehensive Plan intended to meet the requirements of the Metropolitan Land Planning Act and 

Metropolitan Council guidelines and procedures; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 473.858, the proposed Comprehensive Plan 

was submitted to adjacent governmental units and affected special districts and school districts for review 

and comment on July 4, 2018, and the statutory six-month review and comment period has elapsed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the proposed Comprehensive Plan and all 

public comments, and thereafter submitted its recommendations to the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on June 25, 2018 relative to 

the adoption of the proposed Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed Comprehensive Plan and those 

recommendations, public comments, and comments from adjacent jurisdictions and affected districts; and 

 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes section 473.858 requires a local governmental unit to submit its 

proposed comprehensive plan to the Metropolitan Council following recommendation by the planning 

commission and after consideration but before final approval by the governing body of the local 

governmental unit. 

 

WHEREAS, based on its review of the proposed Comprehensive Plan and Planning Commission 

and staff recommendations, the City Council is ready to submit its proposed plan to the Metropolitan 

Council for review pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 473.864; and 

 

 

 NOW THERE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer is directed to distribute said Comprehensive Plan to the 

Metropolitan Council pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 473.864. 

 

  



The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:. 

 

And the following voted against the same: . 

 

  

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 17th day of June, 2019. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 



 

  

 

 

2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Spring Lake Park, 

MN 

DRAFT 

June 13, 2019 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Acknowledgements 

 

Acknowledgements  
 

 
This Comprehensive Plan would not have been possible without the collaboration of City staff, Planning 

Commission Members, City Council Members, consultant staff, and the general public. A special thanks 

to these team members for the dedication and effort they gave to make this Plan a success. 

City Staff 
Dan Buchholtz, City Administrator 

Jenny Gooden, Executive Assistant 

Stantec Consultant Staff 
Phil Carlson, AICP 

Phil Gravel, PE 

Katrina Nygaard, AICP 

Joe Polacek 

Planning Commission Members 
Hans Hansen (Chair) 

Jeff Bernhagen (Vice Chair) 

Lisa Dircks 

Vince SmithEric Julien 

Doug Eischens 

Rick Cobbs   

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Table of Contents 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Chapter 1: Background 1-1 

Chapter 2: Land Use 2-1 

Chapter 3: Housing 3-1 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 4-1 

Chapter 5: Transportation 5-1 

Chapter 6: Water Resources 6-1 

Chapter 7: Implementation 7-1 

Appendix  

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Table of Contents 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Chapter 1: Background 

• Figure 1-1: Community Designation 

• Figure 1-2: Historic and Forecasted Population 

• Figure 1-3: Anoka County and Spring Lake Park Population Comparison 

• Figure 1-4: Actual and Projected Households 

• Figure 1-5: Actual and Projected Households in Anoka County and Spring Lake Park 

• Figure 1-6: Population Pyramid for Spring Lake Park, 2010 

• Figure 1-7: Racial Diversity in Spring Lake Park  

• Figure 1-8: Educational Attainment 

• Figure 1-9: Employment in Spring Lake Park 

• Figure 1-10: Means of Transportation to Work  

• Figure 1-11: Household Income Distribution 

• Figure 1-12: Median Household Income Comparison 

Chapter 2: Land Use 

• Figure 2-1: 2018 Existing Land Use 

• Figure 2-2: 2030 Future Land Use 

• Figure 2-3: 2040 Future Land Use 

• Figure 2-4: Potential Redevelopment Areas 

• Figure 2-5: Gross Solar Potential 

Chapter 3: Housing 

• Figure 3-1: Housing Age 

• Figure 3-2: Owner Occupied Housing Values 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 

• Figure 4-1: Existing Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 

• Figure 4-2: Planned Parks and Recreation 

Chapter 5: Transportation 

• Figure 5-1: Transportation Classification 

• Figure 5-2: Transit System 

• Figure 5-3: University Avenue Existing Conditions 

• Figure 5-4: Traffic Analysis Zones 

Chapter 6: Water Resources 

• Figure 6-1: Sanitary System Map 

• Figure 6-2: MCES Meter Service Areas 

Chapter 7: Implementation 

• Figure 7-1: Zoning Map 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-1 

 

Chapter 1: Background 
 

INTRODUCTION 

A Comprehensive Plan is a tool to implement a community’s long-range vision for the future. The 

Comprehensive Plan addresses many aspects related to City infrastructure and services, including 

transportation, land use, water systems, housing, parks and trails, and the overall vitality of the City. The 

plan provides a guide for elected officials to use when making decisions. The goal of the comprehensive 

planning process to is to develop a plan that is a key resource for the community to use when facing 

issues such as redevelopment, locating a new park, or determining future transportation needs.  

The Comprehensive Plan also serves as a legal foundation for rules and regulations adopted by the 

community, such as the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations. The Comprehensive Plan shapes 

the community’s zoning code and regulations, and can be used to guide land uses to best serve the 

community’s changing needs. To ensure that the Comprehensive Plan addresses the needs of the 

community, full engagement from City staff, elected officials, committees and commissions, and the public 

is essential.  

The comprehensive planning process is a systematic, ongoing, forward-looking process of analysis of 

opportunities and constraints, for the purpose of formulating a plan to accomplish the community’s goals 

and objectives. To plan effectively, the City needs a clear and comprehensive understanding of current 

conditions, and influences and trends that will shape the community’s future.  

Comprehensive plans are required to be completed every ten years by the Metropolitan Council. 

Communities within the 7-County Metropolitan Area are required to complete comprehensive plans by the 

Metropolitan Land Planning Act. 

This Comprehensive Plan is organized into chapters, based on the different elements affecting the City. 

Chapter 1 begins with a summary of the planning process and identifies existing demographic and 

economic conditions that shape Spring Lake Park. The following five chapters address key elements of 

the Plan, identifying goals and policies for future development, mapping and describing existing 

conditions, and describing relevant programs. These plan elements include: 

• Chapter 1: Background 

• Chapter 2: Land Use 

• Chapter 3: Housing 

• Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 

• Chapter 5: Transportation 

• Chapter 6: Water Resources  

• Chapter 7: Implementation 

The plan concludes with an implementation chapter which identifies land use controls, the plan 

amendment process, and the City’s Capital Improvements Program. The implementation chapter is 

critical to the success of the Plan, as it develops action steps to turn the goals and policies identified in 

each chapter to tangible projects in the community.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-2 

 

 

PLANNING PROCESS 

This Comprehensive Plan is the result of a process that included a series of public meetings and 

background data analysis. The first step in the process was a review of current conditions, as well as 

influences and trends that will shape the community’s future. Background information included:  past and 

current trends in demographic data; land use; surface water, public utilities and facilities; transportation; 

and parks and recreation areas. An assessment of these characteristics is an important element in 

developing goals and policies that are consistent with existing conditions in the City. 

The City kicked off the planning process by reviewing and updating background and demographic data 

and developing a planning process that would identify issues, develop goals, policies, and alternatives, 

and create an implementation plan to address the future development of Spring Lake Park. The City’s 

Planning Commission members served as guides throughout the process, sharing feedback through all 

phases.  

Following the background analysis, a Planning Commission meeting was held with members of the 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission and City Staff in February of 2018 to identify key strengths, 

weaknesses, and opportunities in the community. Key strengths and opportunities identified by residents 

included transportation access for all modes, parks and public facilities, and a diverse and affordable 

housing stock. Key weaknesses included maintenance of public facilities and buildings, a lack of east-

west transit options, and maintaining aging housing stock. A complete summary of comments received 

from this meeting is included in Appendix A. These responses were used to revise goals and policies for 

each plan chapter, so that they reflected the concerns of the community.  

In April 2018, the City hosted a community meeting to present background information, share the goals 

and policies, and identify any other issues that needed to be incorporated into the Plan. A complete 

summary of comments received from this meeting is included in Appendix A. 

The information presented in the background report and input provided from community residents 

provided a foundation for developing the Comprehensive Plan. Following consensus on the goals and 

policies, a future land use plan was developed. Because the City is fully developed, the future land use 

plan will be used to guide redevelopment in certain areas of the City.  

After development of the City’s future land use plan, the City’s existing sewer and water, surface water, 

parks and transportation plans were revised to provide consistency with the 2040 Future Land Use Plan. 

A final draft of the Comprehensive Plan was presented to the Planning Commission on May 29, 2018 and 

recommended for approval on June 25, 2018. After input from the Planning Commission, the Plan was 

revised and presented to the City Council for authorization to submit the plan for adjacent community 

review. After the six-month review period, the Council adopted the final plan contingent on Met Council 

approval on ______(date)_______. 

 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-3 

 

CITY BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Spring Lake Park was established in December of 1953, when residents of the township voted 

to approve incorporation. Today the City remains relatively small, with an estimated 2016 population of 

6,519. Most of Spring Lake Park is located in southern Anoka County, but a small portion in the eastern 

part of the City lies within Ramsey County (Figure 1-1). The City is located approximately 12 miles north 

of downtown Minneapolis. Neighboring communities include Blaine to the north, Mounds View to the east, 

Fridley to the south and east, and Coon Rapids to the northwest. Spring Lake Park is served by several 

major highways. State Highway 47 (University Avenue) runs along the western edge of the City, and 

State Highway 65 and County Highway 10 (formerly US Highway 10) intersect in the northeast quadrant 

of the City.  

The City’s last Comprehensive Plan Update was adopted in the year 2009. The 2009 Plan’s focus was 

planning for the year 2030. Conditions in the City have not changed significantly since the 2009 Plan was 

completed. Therefore, current planning efforts will focus on identifying City infrastructure and system 

needs for 2040, discussing possible redevelopment areas, and developing a plan that meets Met Council 

requirements. The Metropolitan Council has identified Spring Lake Park as a “Developed Community, 

which means that most of the City’s growth will occur through redevelopment.Suburban Community,” 

which means development primarily occurred prior to and during the 1980s and 1990s. The Council 

forecasts a demand for walkable places where people can gather, including amenities, higher density 

housing, and civic and institutional spaces. It is anticipated that most development will occur through 

redevelopment of existing properties, since Spring Lake Park is already built-out. 

Population Projections 

To assist local communities in preparing their Comprehensive Plan, the Met Council has population, 

household, and employment forecasts for each community. These forecasts, as first presented in the 

City’s System Statement prepared by the Met Council in 2015 (Appendix B) and subsequently amended 

in August 2016, are presented in Table 1-1. 

Table 1-1: Forecasts (source: 2010 Census; 2016 American Community Survey; Metropolitan Council) 

 2010 2016 2020 2030 2040 

Population 6,412 6,519 6,700 7,000 7,400 

Households 2,672 2,698 2,880 3,000 3,200 

Employment 3,000 2,879 3,280 3,450 3,600 

 

Demographic Trends 

Demographic trends within a community and the surrounding area are important, as these trends provide 

insight into future community issues and needs. A variety of demographic trends are analyzed belowon 

page 1-5. Comparisons are made between the City of Spring Lake Park and Anoka County as a whole to 

provide a point of reference.  

 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-4 

 

 

Figure 1-1: Community Designation 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-5 

 

Population and Household Growth 

As demonstrated in Figure 1-2, Spring Lake Park’s population has remained stable in recent decades. 

The City’s population in 1980 was 6,447. The City’s 2006 population was estimated at 6,623. As Figure 1-

2 demonstrates, the City did experience some growth between 1990 and 2000, adding approximately 200 

residents, an increase of nearly 4 percent. This population increase, however, was erased between 2000 

and 2010 due to effects of the “Great Recession” which began December 2007. The City’s population is 

forecasted to increase 13.6 percent by 2040, with a projected 2040 population of 7,400. Given that the 

City is currently fully developed, this growth will most likely be accommodated through infill development 

at higher densities. 

 

Figure 1-2: Historic and Forecasted Population (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Comparatively, Anoka County’s population has increased substantially in recent decades, as 

demonstrated in Figure 1-3. This growth is forecasted to continue within Anoka County. The significant 

population increases in Anoka County can be explained by the large amount of undeveloped land within 

Anoka County to accommodate population increases. Conversely, because Spring Lake Park has been 

fully developedbuilt-out for several decades, it has not experienced significant growth. 

 

Figure 1-3: Anoka County and City Population Comparison (source: Metropolitan Council; 2010 Census) 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-6 

 

Household trends often have more significant impacts for communities than population trends, as 

household numbers more directly relate to housing and land use needs and development. Household 

trends in the City of Spring Lake Park and Anoka County closely follow population trends in the two 

jurisdictions. As shown below in Figure 1-4, the number of households in Spring Lake Park has increased 

from 1,992 households in 1980 to 2,698 in 2014. The increase in households does not correspond to 

significant increase in population, which can likely be explained by the recent trend of decreasing 

household sizes. By 2040, it is forecasted that the number of households in the City will increase to 

3,200. 

 

Figure 1-4: Actual and Projected Households (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Figure 1-5 demonstrates significant increases in the forecasted number of households for Anoka County 

compared to a relatively small increase for Spring Lake Park. Again, this increase can be attributed to the 

large undeveloped portions of Anoka County available to accommodate additional growth. Because 

Spring Lake Park is fully developed, it will not absorb as large a percentage of the region’s growth as 

other developing communities in Anoka County. 

 

 

Figure 1-5: Actual and Projected Households in Anoka County and Spring Lake Park (source: Metropolitan Council, 

2010 Census) 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-7 

 

Age Distribution 

In 2010, the median age of Spring Lake Park’s population was 41.2 years. The City’s historic median age 

trends demonstrate that the City’s population is aging. For example, in 1970, the median age was 20.5. 

The City’s age distribution for the year 2010 is shown below in Figure 1-6. 

 

Figure 1-6: Population Pyramid for Spring Lake Park, 2010 (source: 2010 Census) 

The City’s age distribution reflects a common trend, with a large percentage of the population between 

the ages of 45 and 64 in the year 2010. This large age group represents the baby boom generation. The 

aging of the baby -boom generation will have a significant effect on the community in upcoming decades 

as the needs of its residents change. 

Racial Diversity 

The racial make-up of Spring Lake Park is presented below in Figure 1-7. The City of Spring Lake Park is 

predominately white (77 percent). The largest minority populations in Spring Lake Park are Hispanic or 

Latino and Asian or Pacific Islander. Approximately 6.0 percent of the population identified as Asian or 

Pacific Islander, and 7.0 percent identified as Hispanic or Latino. Since the 2030 Comprehensive Plan, 

the City has seen an increase in racial diversity, with both racial groups doubling in size.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-8 

 

 

Figure 1-7: Racial Diversity in Spring Lake Park (source: 2015 American Community Survey) 

Education 

The educational attainment for the Spring Lake Park population is presented in Figure 1-8. This 

information is relevant for communities, as it affects the local economy and economic development 

opportunities, as well as potential needs of residents. As demonstrated below, most residents in Spring 

Lake Park have obtained a High School Diploma (91.0 percent) and many others have completed some 

college or higher education (58.0 percent). There has been significant growth in the educational 

attainment of the city’s residents, as the number of residents attaining a bachelor’s degree or above has 

increased nearly 32 percent since the 2000 census. 

 

 

Figure 1-8: Educational Attainment (source: 2015 American Community Survey) 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-9 

 

Economic Overview 

The economic health of a community is important to maintain a high standard of living for existing 

residents and to attract new residents. The following information identifies employment and related 

economic trends.  

Employment 

Historic and forecasted employment data is presented below in Figure 1-9. The number of jobs in Spring 

Lake Park increased steadily between 1970 and 2000, as the number of jobs within the City increased 

from 730 in 1970 to 4,603 in 2000, an increase of 530 percent.  Employment dropped significantly in the 

decade between 2000 and 2010; many of the jobs were lost in the latter part of the decade due to job 

losses from the “Great Recession” which began in December 2007.  Employment growth is expected to 

level off, with a 2040 forecast of 3,600 total jobs. The ratio of jobs to population in Spring Lake Park is 2.3 

residents for every job in the City in 2010.  Major employers in Spring Lake Park include Spring Lake Park 

School District, Aggressive Industries, Rise, and Spring Lake Park Lumber. 

 

Figure 1-9: Employment in Spring Lake Park (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Commute and Transportation 

Figure 1-10 identifies the mode of transportation residents of Spring Lake Park use to access their jobs in 

201500. A majority of residents (78 percent) drove alone to work. Approximately 11 percent of residents 

carpooled, and nearly five percent used public transportation.  The number of residents who worked at 

home has doubled since the 2000 census, reflecting the technological advances that have occurred over 

the past 15 years that allows more residents to work productively from home. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-10 

 

 

Figure 1-10: Means of Transportation to Work (source: 2015 American Community Survey) 

Despite the large number of jobs within Spring Lake Park, a majority of residents worked outside of the 

City. The average commute time for Spring Lake Park residents in 2015 was 24.2 minutes. It is likely that 

this number has increased significantly in recent years due to increasing congestion in the metropolitan 

area.  

Household Income 

The median household income in 2015 in Spring Lake Party was $51,719, an increase of 10.8% from 

2000. Figure 1-11 presents a comparison of income distribution for the City of Spring Lake Park and the 

Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan area.  

 

Figure 1-11: Household Income Distribution (source: 2015 American Community Survey) 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-11 

 

The median household income for Spring Lake Park is lower than the median household income for Twin 

Cities metro and Anoka County as a whole (Figure 1-12). 

 

Figure 1-12: Median Household Income Comparison (source: 2015 American Community Survey) 

Spring Lake Park’s median income has not kept pace with the growth in median income from either 

Anoka County, the Twin Cities Metro Area and the State of Minnesota.  While the City’s median income 

grew by 10.8 percent since 2000, Anoka County’s grew by 22.7 percent, the Twin Cities Metro Area’s 

grew by 26.7 percent and the State of Minnesota’s grew by 30.5 percent.  The City’s median income can 

have an impact on the local economy and housing and transportation needs for residents. 

 

 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-12 

 

REVISIONS REQUIRED 

 

Task Completed Needed / notes Advisory? Who Done? 

Reference Chapter 7 on 
page 1-1 

Added “Chapter 7: 
Implementation” 

done  Polacek Y 

Fix reference to community 
designation on page 1-3 

Replaced “Developed” with 
“Suburban” and added definition 
from Council 

done  Polacek Y 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-1 

 

Chapter 2: Land Use

INTRODUCTION 

The Land Use Chapter identifies the specific land use categories and strategies for future growth and 

redevelopment in Spring Lake Park. The land use categories are the framework upon which the 

official controls, such as the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations, are based. The plan 

elements contain the regulatory concepts for residential growth, commercial and industrial 

development and environmental protection.  The plan elements and land use planning decisions are 

based on Goals and Policies developed during the Comprehensive Plan update process.   

Land Use Goals and Policies 

The City of Spring Lake Park’s land use goals include the following: 

1. Provide for a mix of residential land uses to provide life-cycle housing for residents.  

2. Provide for industrial uses to sustain and broaden the city’s economic base. 

3. Provide for a mix of commercial uses that provide goods and services to residents and that 

benefit from the city’s proximity to major highways and roads. 

4. Provide for public uses to serve the needs of residents. 

5. Provide for parks that provide recreational opportunities for residents 

6. Support growth consistent with the Metropolitan Council’s regional growth strategy. 

7. Encourage the redevelopment of under-utilized properties in a manner that achieves the 

highest and best use, eliminates blight, and increases the community’s tax base while 

mitigating impacts on surrounding land uses. 

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals listed above. It is 

the policy of the City of Spring Lake Park to: 

1. Establish a future land use plan that will enable the City to meet its population, and 

household and employment forecasts. 

2. Provide for the rezoning of properties currently improved with residential uses but designated 

for commercial or industrial uses by the adopted comprehensive plan update, at such time as 

proposals for industrial or commercial developments are presented to the City for review, with 

the intent that current residential property owners with nonconforming uses shall not be 

jeopardized in the event that a natural or man-made disaster destroys their dwellings. 

3. Work with property owners to create redevelopment standards in existing single-family 

residential neighborhoods that are consistent with neighboring homes.  

4. Continue to provide for zoning restrictions on properties designated for commercial/industrial 

uses so that there will be appropriate buffers between commercial/industrial development and 

adjacent residential uses. 

5. Approve ordinance provisions that are consistent with land use designations established in 

the adopted comprehensive plan update. 

6. Review and amend the City’s Code of Ordinances and Zoning Code as needed to reflect 

changes in the community. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-2 

 

EXISTING LAND USE 

Despite its small size, Spring Lake Park includes a variety of land uses including industrial, 

commercial, public/semi-public, park, and single and multi-family residential. Table 2-1 shows 

acreages of existing land uses. Net acreages (including wetland areas) are included in Table 2-1. It is 

important to note that all acreage calculations have been rounded. Figure 2-1 shows a map of 

existing land use in Spring Lake Park that corresponds with the information presented in Table 2-1.   

As shown in Table 2-1, single family residential is the predominant land use in the City (57 percent). 

The City also includes a manufactured home park, and scattered townhomes, duplexes, and 

apartment buildings. Housing stock throughout the City is discussed in detail in Chapter 3: Housing. 

Commercial uses are concentrated along major transportation corridors in the City: University 

Avenue, Highway 65, and Highway 10. Commercial businesses consist mainly of retail stores or 

service providers, with a few office buildings. Industrial uses are mainly clustered north of the 

intersection of Highway 10 and Highway 65 and at the intersection of Osborne Road and Old Central 

(CSAH 35). 

Public and Semi-Public Uses, which may consist of government buildings, churches, schools, and 

hospitals and clinics, also make up a large portion of the total land use in the City (10 percent of the 

total net acreage). Significant public uses in the City include the Spring Lake Park High School 

located just south of 81st Ave NE between Able St NE and Highway 65 and the Independent School 

District 16 administration offices located just north of 81st Avenue NE and east of Central Ave NE. 

Table 2-1: Existing Land Use Acreages 

2018 Existing Land Use Gross Acres 
Percent of 

City Net Acres 
Percent of 

City 

Single Family Residential 542.24 40% 529.75 39% 

Multi-Family Residential (3-
6u) 22.30 2% 22.30 2% 

Multi-Family Residential (6-
25u) 53.35 4% 53.29 4% 

Senior/Handicapped 
Residential 12.45 1% 12.45 1% 

Commercial 79.13 6% 78.96 6% 

Commercial/Industrial 78.89 6% 76.04 6% 

Public/Semi-Public 97.91 7% 96.52 7% 

Park/Open Space 57.32 4% 39.94 3% 

Vacant 21.09 2% 20.23 2% 

Right-of-Way 334.56 25% 327.07 24% 

Open Water 48.75 4% 48.75 4% 

NWI Wetland - - 42.69 3% 

Total City 1,347.99 100% 1,347.99 100% 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-3 

 

 
Figure 2-1: 2018 Existing Land Use 

 

FUTURE LAND USE 

Because Spring Lake Park is fully developed, land use in the City will not change significantly during 

this comprehensive planning period. The City’s future land use categories include the following:  

• Low Density Residential: Single-family detached housing, including scattered duplexes at a 

density of 1 to 3 units per acre. 

• Medium Density Residential: Attached housing, including quad homes, townhomes, and 

row homes at a density of 3 to 6 units per acre.  

• High Density Residential: Attached housing, including condominiums and apartment 

buildings at a density of 6 to 25 units per acredensities between 6 units and 25 units per acre. 

• Commercial: Retail sales and services, including professional services, hotels/motels, 

recreational services, and private institutional uses. 

• Industrial: Manufacturing of all kinds, including assembly of products produced elsewhere, 

facilities involved in the movement of goods, warehousing, construction, communications, 

utilities and wholesale sales.  

• Public/Semi-Public: Buildings and adjacent lands of schools (both public and private), 

hospitals, churches, cemeteries, and all facilities of local, state, and federal government.  

• Mixed Use: Areas designated “Mixed Use” are intended to provide flexibility to allow 

complementary uses within a district. Land uses include a mix of medium- and high-density 

residential uses (60 percent of land uses) and commercial uses (40 percent of land uses). 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-4 

 

Site design should focus on walkability, preservation of open space, and access to 

commercial uses.  

• Parks and Recreation: Park, open space, and recreational facilities owned and operated by 

local, regional, state and federal governments 

• Right-of-Way: Public or private vehicular, transit, and/or pedestrian rights-of-way 

• Lake: Open water 

• Wetland: Wetlands identified in the National Wetland Inventory.  

Acreages for the City’s future land use category are presented below in Table 2-2.  It is important to 

note that acreages are rounded in this table. Planned fFuture land use in the city is mapped in Figure 

2-3.  

Single family residential will remain the predominant land use in Spring Lake Park, occupying 55 

percent of the City’s total area. The City is planning to accommodate additional Medium Density 

Residential, which is defined as attached housing such as townhomes, at a density of 3 to 6 units per 

acre. Currently the City contains 22 acres of Medium Density Residential, however this is planned to 

increase slightly to 23.76 acres by 2040. These additional areas of Medium Density Residential will 

provide capacity for some of the City’s projected 2040 growth. High density residential areas include 

existing apartment buildings, mobile home parks, and senior/housing with services at a density of 6 

units per acre or moreat densities between 6 units and 25 units per acre.   

Because the community of Spring Lake Park already has a vast supply of affordable housing, and 

because the community’s population is aging, redevelopment in the High- Density Residential 

Districts should be directed towards accommodating senior residents. Providing senior housing for 

residents will help Spring Lake Park to achieve its goals for the provision of life-cycle housing within 

the community.  

The future land use plan also identifies additional areas of commercial and industrial areas. Currently, 

the City contains 78 acres of Commercial uses. The 2040 Pplan identifies 100 acres, with the largest 

growth in commercial areas at the future Hy-Vee site. Similarly, Industrial areas are planned to 

increase from 79 acres to 86 acres. Much of this development will occur on land within the City that is 

currently vacant. The provision of additional commercial and industrial lands will provide additional 

employment opportunities within the City, enabling the City to meet its projected in employment. 

Additionally, providing new commercial and industrial areas will broaden the City’s tax base, which 

could potentially reduce the tax burden on residential properties. 

A mixed-use area is planned along Highway 65, south of 81st Avenue NE. This area will feature a 

mixture of commercial and medium- and high-density residential uses. It will be an important center 

for the community with easy access to the High School, Highway 65, City Hall, and commercial 

development north of 81st Avenue NE. When developed, this area could accommodate projected 

household and population growth in the city. 

Because the City is fully built-out, land use change will occur through redevelopment. Rather than 

phase growth area, the City, its Council and Planning Commission are prepared to address these 

changes as they arise. Table 2-2 does not identify land use change in 2020 or 2030, as 

redevelopment will be market-driven and exact timing is unknown. Areas likely to redevelop are 

discussed in the next section of this chapter: Potential Redevelopment Areas. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-5 

 

Table 2-2: Future Land Use 

Land Use Designation 2030 2040 

2040 2030 (if different) Gross Net Net % Gross Net Net % 

Single Family 
Residential 

Low Density 
Residential 

510.09 493.94 37% 511.71 499.22 37% 

Multi-Family Residential 
(3-6u) 

Medium Density 
(3-6u) 

26.74 26.74 2% 23.76 23.76 2% 

Multi-Family Residential 
(6-25u) 

High Density 
(6+u) 

62.38 59.36 4% 59.22 59.16 4% 

Mixed Use (non- existent) - - - 26.3 26.3 2% 

Commercial - 106.21 105.29 8% 99.08 98.06 7% 

Commercial/Industrial - 91.11 78.50 6% 89.38 86.53 6% 

Public/Semi-Public - 96.73 94.31 7% 97.91 96.52 7% 

Park/Open Space Parks 42.95 34.42 3% 57.32 39.94 3% 

Right-of-Way - 341.11 328.20 25% 334.56 327.07 24% 

Open Water Lake 59.5 59.50 4% 48.75 48.75 4% 

Wetland - - 56.56 4% - 42.69 3% 

Total - 1,336.81 1,336.81 100% 1,347.99 1,347.99 100% 

 

 

Figure 2-2: 2030 Future Land Use (from 2008) 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-6 

 

 

 

Figure 2-3: 2040 Planned Future Land Use 

 

Potential Redevelopment Areas 

Through the planning process, the City of Spring Lake Park has identified numerous potential 

redevelopment areas in their community (mapped in Figure 2-4). Potential redevelopment areas have 

been identified because of their unique location in the community, with high visibility and access. 

These areas show potential for change in the city, but redevelopment will only occur if the market 

conditions are right. The City of Spring Lake Park will support existing and future property owners to 

make sure that new development works for all residents and business owners. Each of the five 

possible areas are described below. 

1. New Mixed-Use District 

This area, bounded by Highway 65 and 81st Avenue NE, has been identified for possible mixed-use 

redevelopment. The area is along major corridors in the community, with good access to schools and 

commercial areas. The addition of a Hy-Vee Grocery Store north of the area will provide additional 

opportunity for future commercial and residential activity in the area. 

2. Osborne Road NE at Terrace Road NE 

This area is across Osborne Road from the Mercy Hospital Campus in Fridley. This area includes 

vacant land and single-family homes. While there were previous intentions to use the property for 

medical office, the 2040 Future Land Use Plan identifies the area for commercial redevelopment.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-7 

 

3. Intersection of Highway 65 and Osborne Road NE 

This area is another highly visible and accessible intersection in Spring Lake Park. The area will still 

be guided for commercial use, with the opportunity to redevelop the area as market conditions allow.  

4. Intersection of University Avenue NE and 83rd Ave NE 

This intersection is part of a larger commercial area along the far western side of Spring Lake Park, 

bordering Fridley. Like Redevelopment Area #3, the area will still be guided for commercial use, with 

the opportunity to redevelop as market conditions allow. Redevelopment in this area should feature 

improved pedestrian facilities as University Avenue has been a historically dangerous corridor for 

motorist-pedestrian vehicle collisions.  

5. 85th Ave NE Public Works Facility 

This area is located at 85th Ave, near the interchange of County Highway 10 and Highway 65. It is 

highly visible, but access is limited due to the interchange and presence of Laddie Lake. The area is 

currently a mix of restaurants and the City’s Public Works garage. As departmental needs grown and 

change, this area may become available for redevelopment or reuse.  

 

Figure 2-4: Potential Redevelopment Areas 

In order to support regional services, the Metropolitan Council has set the net residential density for 

new development in Suburban communities like Spring Lake Park to a minimum of 5 units per acre. 

Density expectations are outlined in Table 2-3. 

 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-8 

 

Table 2-3: Density in Potential Redevelopment Areas 

 2018 2030 2040 

 Acres Density Units Acres Density Units Acres Density Units 
Low Density  14.3 1 to 3 14-43 14.3 1 to 3 14-43 0.0 1 to 3 0 

Med. Density 2.6 3 to 6 7-15 2.6 3 to 6 7-15 0.0 3 to 6 0 

High Density 6.6 6 to 25 39-164 6.6 6 to 25 39-164 0.0 6 to 25 0 

Mixed Use 0.0 6 to 25 0 0.0 6 to 25 0 25.9 6 to 25 155-647 

Commercial 9.5 None 0 11.7 None 0 11.8 None 0 

Com-Industrial 1.8 None 0 1.8 None 0 0.0 None 0 

Public/Semi 2.1 None 0 0.0 None 0 2.1 None 0 

Vacant 2.9 None 0 2.9 None 0 0.0 None 0 

Total 39.8  61-223 39.8 - 61-223 39.8 - 155-647 

Density    1.5-5.6   1.5-5.6   3.9-16.3 

 

As the communityBecause Spring Lake Park has been completely built out, future development will 

take the form of redevelopment. Redevelopment in residential areas will likely take the form of single-

family tear downs and subsequent new construction, which will lead to similar densities as today.  

The greatest opportunity to increase housing density in the City of Spring Lake Park is in the area 

designated as Mixed Use on the 2040 Future Land Use Plan. This area has the opportunity to raise 

average densities in those areas slated for redevelopment to as many as 16 dwelling units per acre.  

It is expected that redevelopment of the new Mixed Use area will begin near the intersection of TH 65 

(Central Ave) and 81st Ave NE as this is near the site of an anticipated grocery store (Hy-Vee Site). 

That first block is approximately 2.5 acres which could accommodate up to 62 dwelling units. The 

largest block designated Mixed Use is directly to the east and will likely redeveloped second. It is 

approximately 12 acres which could accommodate 300 dwelling units. When the final three blocks to 

the south and west are developed, totaling about 12 acres in all, they may accommodate up to 290 

dwelling units. In all, this Mixed Use district may support up to 652 units at high densities. 

Key Employment Areas 

The City of Spring Lake Park is home to numerous commercial and industrial areas, with 

opportunities for employment. Because many of these areas have already been developed and are 

operating, there will not be a significant change in trips generated or water usage. Two major 

commercial employment changes include the future Hy-Vee Grocery Store at 81st Avenue NE and 

commercial development of vacant land along Osborne Road NE. In commercial and industrial 

developments, property owners are required to complete a site plan review process which will 

minimize the impacts to utilities and traffic generated by the proposed development.   

Other important eEmployment areas in Spring Lake Park are clustered around the intersection of 

County Highway 10 and Highway 65 and to a lesser extent, along University Avenue at Osborne 

Road and stretching north. An approximate number of workers in key employment areas are outlined 

in Table 2-4. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-9 

 

Table 2-4: Employment Intensity 

2040 Future Land Use Acres 
Mean 
FAR 

Working 
Acres/Sqft Sqft/Worker Workers 

Mixed Use (40% 
Commercial) 

10.52 0.28 2.95/128.5k 1000 128 

Commercial 99.08 0.28 27.75/120.9k 1200 100 

Commercial/Industrial 89.38 0.32 28.5/124k 1400 88 

 

PROTECTING SPECIAL RESOURCES 

As required by state statute, a municipality’s comprehensive plan must also include strategies for 

protection of special resources, including solar access, historic preservation, aggregate, and natural 

resources. These strategies are discussed below. 

Solar Access 

Minnesota Statutes require an element for the protection and development of access to direct sunlight 

for solar energy systems. The purpose of this legislation is to prevent solar collectors from being 

shaded by adjacent structures or vegetation and to ensure that development decisions do not 

preclude the possible future development and use of solar energy systems. To ensure the availability 

of solar access, the City of Spring Lake Park will, whenever possible, protect access to direct sunlight 

for solar energy systems on principal structures. The City of Spring Lake Park will consider solar 

access in the review of site plans and planning decisions.  

The Metropolitan Council has calculated the gross and rooftop solar potential for the City of Spring 

Lake Park to identify how much electricity could be generated using existing technology. The gross 

solar potential and gross solar rooftop potential are expressed in megawatt hours per year (Mwh/yr), 

and these estimates are based on the solar map for your community. Developed areas with low 

building heights and open space areas have the highest potential for solar development in the City. 

Many of the developed neighborhoods and some natural areas in Spring Lake Park do not have high 

gross solar potential due to existing tree cover. This gross development potential is included in Table 

2-5.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-10 

 

Table 2-5: Solar Potential in Spring Lake Park (source: Metropolitan Council) 

 

The City of Spring Lake Park has entered into an agreement with US/Solar to purchase electricity 

from a number of solar gardens located within Anoka County and other adjacent counties.  The City 

has contacted with US/Solar to provide 120% of the City’s annual electric use, which includes, but is 

not limited to, its municipal facilities, water treatment plants, lift stations, and street lights. The City’s 

25- year agreement with US/Solar is anticipated to provide 32.5 million kWh of renewable electricity 

at an estimated cost savings of $1.3 million. 

Gross solar potential in Spring Lake Park is illustrated in Figure 2-5. 

 

Figure 2-5: Gross Solar Potential 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-11 

 

Supportive Programs 

There are a number of programs available to Spring Lake Park that can foster solar access in the city. 

Such programs are offered by the Federal and State-level government, and private utility. The City of 

Spring Lake Park can take advantage of these programs to increase participation, awareness, and 

community support for renewable energy. These programs are offered with no cost to the community: 

• US Dept. of Energy – SolSmart. This program is designed to consult local governments on 

how to remove barriers and burdensome costs to create a more accessible environment for 

solar companies. Local municipalities that have already taken part in the program include 

Falcon Heights, Minneapolis, St. Paul, and Maplewood.  

• MN PCA – GreenStep Cities. This program provides a set of actionable best practices that 

can be implemented at a 1, 2, or 3-start level from lower investments to higher payoffs. Many 

local cities are already being recognized as GreenStep Cities, including Mounds View, New 

Brighton, and Fridley.  

• Xcel Energy – Partners in Energy. This two-year program fosters a team of local residents, 

businesses, and stakeholders to identify energy goals, create a plan, and implement 

strategies that utilize local resources. A team of experts in energy consulting are available to 

facilitate the process.  

Historic Preservation 

There are no sites in the city that are listed on the National Register of Historic Places.  The City of 

Spring Lake Park will consider the preservation of historic resources in the review of site plans and 

other planning decisions. The City will, whenever possible, preserve historic structures or landscapes. 

Aggregate Resources 

Metropolitan Council requires that metropolitan area communities identify any regionally significant 

aggregate resources to ensure proper planning for their use. The City of Spring Lake Park is fully 

developed.  Therefore, the City is not impacted by aggregate resources nor are there any 

opportunities for mining within the community.   

Natural Resources 

Vibrant natural amenities help to make a community thrive. Preserving and retaining natural 

resources for the future is an important value in Spring Lake Park and Twin Cities Region. The City is 

home to numerous parks, lakes, and wetlands which provide ecological and recreational benefits to 

residents. As the city is built out, no new parks are planned. However, the City will work to protect 

existing natural areas for future generations. The City will work with the Minnesota Department of 

Natural Resources, local watershed districts, Anoka and Ramsey Counties, and the Metropolitan 

Council to protect and enhance natural resources in the area. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-12 

 

REVISIONS REQUIRED 

 

Task Completed Needed / notes Advisory? Who Done? 

Consider adding US Dept 
of Energy SolSmart 
Program, MN GreenStep 
Cities, and Xcel’s Partners 
in Change 

Added SolSmart, GreenStep, 
Partners in Energy narrative – 
Joe. Dan added paragraph about 
US Solar agreement 

Page 2-11, added 
‘supportive 
programs’ 

Y Buchholtz, 
Polacek 

Y 

Identify enough land for 
future growth (not 
accommodated by future 
land use plan). 

Dan made changes to map. 
Hongyi updated map. 

Figure 2-4  Duan Y 

Include future land use 
table broken down by 
decade (Table 2-2) 

Added 2030 FLU from last update Table 2-2  Polacek Y 

Fix reference to High 
Density Residential’s 
density range (must include 
maximum) 

Changed definition of High 
Density Residential to read 
“between 6 units and 25 units per 
acre”. 

Page 2-3  Duan Y 

For mixed-use categories, 
define expected share of 
individual land use and 
identify permitted density 
range for residential 

Changed description of MU from 
medium- and high-density, to 
simply high-density 

Page 2-3  Polacek, 

Carlson 

Y 

Identify employment 
locations and measurement 
of planned intensity. 

Using Floor Area Ratio Guide 

 

Narrative,  

Table 2-4 

 Polacek, 

Carlson 

Y 

Identify when residential 
development is anticipated 
to happen 

(Guide) Narrative,  

 

Table 2-3. 

 Polacek, 

Carlson 

Y 

Make average net 
residential density 
consistent with Suburban 
designation 

Added narrative after table 2-2 “In 
order to support… 5 units per 
acre” (Guide) 

 

Table 2-3 

 Polacek, 

Carlson 

Y 

Guide residential land at 
densities sufficient to create 
opportunities for affordable 
housing 

(Guide)  

Table 2-3 

 Polacek, 

Carlson 

Y 

Include Potential Redev. 
table to accompany Fig 2-3 

Added table with each 
designation from redevelopment 
areas. 2018, 2030, 2040  

 

Table 2-3 

 Duan Y 

 

https://metrocouncil.org/Handbook/Files/Resources/Fact-Sheet/LAND-USE/How-to-Measure-Employment-Intensity-and-capacity.aspx
https://metrocouncil.org/handbook/plan-elements/land-use.aspx
https://metrocouncil.org/Handbook/Files/Resources/Fact-Sheet/LAND-USE/net-residential-density.aspx
https://metrocouncil.org/Handbook/plan-elements/housing.aspx


City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-1 

 

Chapter 3: Housing

INTRODUCTION 

Housing is an integral component of a city’s landscape. This chapter identifies the City’s goals for its 

future housing stock, an inventory of existing housing in the City, and identifies future housing needs.  

Housing Goals and Policies 

The following goals were developed to guide development of the City’s housing plan: 

1. Facilitate the maintenance and rehabilitation of existing housing, so as to prevent 

deterioration. 

2. Provide housing for a range of ages and incomes.  

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals. It is the policy of 

the City of Spring Lake Park to: 

1. Provide qualified residents with information about housing maintenance and rehabilitation 

programs administered by Anoka County Housing and Redevelopment Authority and the 

Minnesota Housing Finance Agency. 

2. Pursue the development of new housing to accommodate a range of housing needs, 

particularly executive and senior housing. 

3. Research and engage with experts and the community on best management practices and 

policies regarding accessory dwelling units in residential neighborhoods.  

EXISTING HOUSING STOCK 

Spring Lake Park was developed mainly in the 1950s and 1960s. The rambler comprises a majority of 

homes in the City, a housing style typical of the era in which the City developed. The oldest 

neighborhoods in Spring Lake Park are located in the northern and western northeastern parts of the 

city. Some housing developments were completed after 2000, particularly in the southeastern part of 

the city. Housing age is mapped in Figure 3-1. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-2 

 

 

Figure 3-1: Housing Age 

Housing Type 

There were 2,7822,781 occupied housing units in Spring Lake Park in 20152016. Twenty-eight nine 

percent of these units were rental units. The City includes a variety of housing types, as shown in 

Table 3-1 and Figure 3-2. A majority of units (60.874.0 percent) are single family detached units. After 

single family detached housing units, the most common housing type within the City was buildings 

with 20 or more units, as this housing type represents 13.3 percent of all housing units within the City.  

Table 3-1: Housing Type in 2016 (source: Metropolitian Council) 

Single-family units Multifamily units Mobile homes Other housing units 

2,057 622 102 0 

74.0% 22.4% 4.6% - 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-3 

 

Figure 3-2: Housing Type (source: American Community Survey, 2015) 

 
Housing Values and Costs 

Owned Housing Units 

The median home value for Spring Lake Park in 2015 was $158,700. In 2000, the median home 

value in Spring Lake Park was $120,000 ($165,168 in 2015 dollars). While the median home value 

has increased 32 percent over the past fifteen years, on an inflation adjusted basis, the median home 

value has declined by 3.9 percent.  Home values increased at a faster rate in Anoka County as 

whole, with an increase from $131,000 in 2000 ($180,300 in 2015 dollars) to $187,600 in 2015. The 

Anoka County 2015 median home value of $187,600 is higher than Spring Lake Park’s median value. 

This discrepancy may in part be attributed to the large number of new homes built in Anoka County in 

recent years relative to the City of Spring Lake Park.  

With this inflation-adjusted decline in median home value over the past year, a significant amount of 

the housing in Spring Lake Park qualifies as affordable housing.  Out of the 2,782 housing units in the 

City, nearly 95% of the units are affordable to households making 80% or less of area median 

income. Housing values are mapped in Figure 3-2.  

60.8

10.5

4.1

2.3

3.5

2.9

2.6

13.3

Single Family, detached

Single Family, attached

Mobile Home

Duplexes

Buildings with 3 or 4 units

… with 5 to 9 units

… with 10 to 19 units

… with 20+



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-4 

 

 

Figure 3-2: Owner Occupied Housing Values 

As stated earlier in this section, the median home value in Spring Lake Park is $158,700, which is 

slightly more affordable than the Anoka County median value of $193,200 and also more affordable 

than the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area median of $212,600. Spring Lake Park’s housing values are 

very similar to neighboring communities. Table 3-2 includes median home values in nearby 

communities. 

Table 3-2: Median Housing Values in and around Spring Lake Park (source: American Community Survey, 2016) 

Community Median Housing Value 

Spring Lake Park $158,700 

Mounds View $168,600 

Fridley $166,600 

Anoka County $193,200 

Twin Cities Metropolitan Area $212,600 

 

Rental Housing Units 

The median rent in Spring Lake Park is $905 per month, which is lower than the Twin Cities 

Metropolitan Area ($916) and Anoka County ($1,000). Compared to other communities in the area, 

Spring Lake Park’s median rent is approximately the same or slightly higher. As the city sees housing 

redevelopment opportunities, such as the Dominium apartment development Legends of Spring Lake 

Park, median monthly rent may change. Table 3-3 includes median monthly rents in nearby 

communities. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-5 

 

Table 3-3: Median Rent in and around Spring Lake Park (source: American Community Survey, 2016) 

Community Median Monthly Rent 

Spring Lake Park $905 

Mounds View $869 

Fridley $904 

Anoka County $1,000 

Twin Cities Metropolitan Area $916 

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY 

As part of the 2040 Housing Policy Plan, the Metropolitan Council estimates that approximately 

37,000 additional low- and moderate-income households needing affordable housing units will be 

needed in the region between 2020-2030. The Metropolitan Council will be working with communities 

to allocate these units across the region.   

Affordable Housing Stock in Spring Lake Park 

The Metropolitan Council defines home ownership affordability as $85,500$83,500 for households 

making less than 30 percent Area Median Income (AMI), $153,000$149,000 for households making 

31-50 percent AMI, $181,500 for households making 51-60 percent Area Median Income (AMI), and 

$240,500$243,500 for households making 51-80 percent AMI. In Spring Lake Park, the median home 

value is $160,400, indicating that much of the City’s housing stock is affordable at the 51-80 percent 

AMI level. Housing affordability is discussed further later in this chapter. 

There are approximately 2,782 total housing units in the City of Spring Lake Park. Of those 1,905 

(68%) are owner occupied and 877 (32%) are renter occupied. About 1,405 units are affordable to 

households with incomes between 51- and 80-percent AMI. 1,037 units are affordable to households 

with income between 31- and 50-percent AMI. 234 units are affordable to households with income at 

or below 30-percent AMI.  

These housing stock characteristics in Spring Lake Park are summarized in Table 3-4. 

Table 3-4: Affordable Housing Stock in Spring Lake Park (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Total Number of 
Units 

2,782 

Tenure 
Owner Occupied Renter Occupied 

1,905 877 

Number of 
Affordable Units 

At or below 30% AMI 31-50% AMI 51-80% AMI 

234 1,037 1,405 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-6 

 

There are a total of 152 publicly subsidized units within the city, of which 60 are designated 

specifically for seniors as outlined in Table 3-5. There are no publicly subsidized housing units within 

Spring Lake Park supplied specifically for people with disabilities.   

Table 3-5: Publicly Subsidized Units (source: Metropolitan CountilCouncil) 

Number of 
Publicly 
Subsidized 
Units 

Senior Housing 
People with 
Disabilities 

All other publicly 
subsidized units 

60 0 3892 

 

Cost Burdened Households 

Many residents in communities across the Twin Cities experience challenges affording their housing 

costs. The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) defines housing to be affordable if 

the residents do not pay more than 30 percent of their income towards housing costs. Housing costs 

can include rent or mortgage payments, utility bills, HOA fees or other fees associated with living in 

the home. Residents who pay more than 30 percent are considered “Cost-burdened”.  

In Spring Lake Park, over six hundred households (23.8 percent of households) are considered to be 

cost-burdened. There are 222 households with income at or below 30-percent the Area Median 

Income (AMI). 274 households with income between 31- and 50-percent AMI. 140 households with 

income between 51- and 80-percent AMI.  Table 3-6 describes the cost burdened households by 

median income level. 

Table 3-6: Housing-Cost-Burdened Households (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Household Income Level Number of Cost-burdened Households 

At or below 30% AMI 222 

31 to 50% AMI 274 

51 to 80% AMI 140 

Total Households 636 

 

Housing Projections and Need 

Although the City of Spring Lake Park is relatively built out, it will still need to accommodate for new 

residents of all socioeconomic backgrounds. The Metropolitan Council requires that Spring Lake Park 

must supply 29 new units of affordable housing (at or below 80 percent AMI) by 2040. The greatest 

need of affordable units are for those household making 30-percent area median income or below. 

The Met Council allocates a need of fourteen additional units for that low-income population in Spring 

Lake Park by 2040. An additional six units are needed for household making between 31- and 50-

percent AMI. Nine units are needed for household making between 51- and 80-percent AMI.  

The greatest need of affordable housing units by 2040 are for households at or below 30-percent 

AMI. The units must be affordable at different levels, describedHousing units needs are outlined 

based on income level below in Table 3-7. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-7 

 

Table 3-7: Affordable Unit Allocation (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Household Income Level Number of Units 

At or below 30% AMI 14 

31 to 50% AMI 6 

51 to 80% AMI 9 

Total Households 29 

 

A majority of housing within the Spring Lake Park is already considered affordable, however the City 

has guided several areas for Medium and High Density Residential on its 2040 land use plan, which 

will provide additional opportunities for affordable housing in the community. The 29 allocated 

affordable housing units could also be accounted for in the proposed mixed-use district along MN 65. 

Redevelopment and anticipated residential density is addressed in Chapter 2: Land Use. 

While the City is doing their part in creating a regulatory land use plan to plan for areas of density 

greater than 6 units per acre, where most affordable housing will occur, barriers to development of 

affordable housing still exist in the region as well as in Spring Lake Park.  Some of these barriers are 

beyond the City’s control including:  

• Steady increases in land prices. 

• Increase in construction costs. When combined with land prices, it becomes more difficult to 

provide affordable units through new construction. 

• Physical limitations of land due to wetlands, poor access, poor soils that would increase the 

cost of land development or construction thus making it more difficult to build affordable units. 

• Limited amount of remaining developable land. 

• State, county and local tax structures. 

MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS 

The City of Spring Lake Park includes over 100 manufactured housing units (commonly known as 

Mobile Homes). These units are naturally occurring affordable housing – meaning that they provide 

affordable housing without public subsidy. They also provide a unique opportunity for low-income 

households to attain homeownership. As land prices and incomes rise, these units may be 

susceptible to redevelopment, diminishing the stock of critical affordable housing within Spring Lake 

Park.  

The City will consider available tools for the conservation of such affordable units, including the 

creation of co-operatives, Community Land Trust (CLT), and Low or No Cost Rehabilitation Loan 

Programs.  

AVAILABLE HOUSING TOOLS 

There are a number of widely used tools available to the City of Spring Lake Park to address housing 

needs within the community. Such tools include, but are not limited to: 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-8 

 

• Site Assembly - Site or land assembly is a powerful tool cities can use to support housing 

development. When local governments acquire or have site control of a property, they can 

control the final development product. (source: Metropolitan Council) The City will use this 

tool when appropriate redevelopment opportunities and development interest arises.  

• Use or creation of EDA/HRA, or partnership with Anoka County HRA - State law permits 

cities to cooperatively plan, undertake, construct, or operate projects that contribute to the 

economic welfare and public benefit of the community, including housing projects and 

developments, redevelopment projects, interest rate reduction programs, or any combination 

of these. (source: Metropolitan Council) This tool will be usedThe City works closely with 

Anoka County HRA on commercial, industrial and multi-family development and 

redevelopment activities.  

• Housing Bond Issuance - Under state law, citescities and counties are authorized to 

develop and administer programs that make or purchase mortgages to finance the acquisition 

or rehabilitation of affordable housing. (source: Metropolitan Council)  The City has issued 

housing bonds in in the past to create affordable housing in the community.  The City will 

utilize this tool for the creation of new affordable housing projects when opportunities arise. 

• Tax Abatement - Tax abatement is a financing tool that reduces taxes or tax increases for 

owners of specific properties. Local governments offer the tax reduction to provide a financial 

incentive for a public benefit, such as creation of housing affordable to low and moderate-

income households. (source: Metropolitan Council) The City will work with non-profit and 

affordable housing developers to use this tool for the creation of new affordable housing 

projects when opportunities arise.  

• Tax Increment Financing (TIF) - A primary tool in economic development and 

redevelopment, tax increment financing, also known as TIF, is a legislatively authorized tool 

available to cities and special entities such as housing and redevelopment authorities. Used 

to finance real estate development costs, municipalities create TIF districts to encourage 

development and to pay for related public improvements and infrastructure needs such as 

streets, sidewalks, or sewer. (source: Metropolitan Council) The City will work with non-profit 

and affordable housing developers to use this tool for the creation of new affordable housing 

projects when opportunities arise. 

• Minnesota Housing RFP - The Consolidated RFP allows Minnesota Housing and its funding 

partners to use a single application and advertise multiple resources at once. This provides 

funders the flexibility to assemble creative finance packages that best fit each project during 

the project review and selection processes. (source: Metropolitan Council) When affordable 

housing development opportunities arise, the City will share this resource with developers. 

An introduction to these and other tools are provided by the MetropolitianMetropolitan Council under 

the Housing tab at www.metrocouncil.org/Handbook/Resources.aspx 

HOUSING ACTION PLAN 

The following Housing Action Plan outlines efforts Spring Lake Park will explore to maintain existing 

housing and create new affordable housing in the next ten years:  

Regulatory 
• The City will pProvide sufficient land guided at densities greater than 6 units per acre, within 

redevelopment areas close to jobs and transit. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-9 

 

• The City will research and consider Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) as a permitted use in the 

2018-2028 term.  

Housing Maintenance 
• The City will strengthen its efforts to actively promote first-time homebuyer programs to assist 

residents entering the market.   

• The City will also market housing rehabilitation programs available through the County and 

State.  This can be done via the City’s website, newsletter and other methods.   

Enforcement 
• The City will eEvaluate existing housing stock in order to target code enforcement and 

rehabilitation assistance. 

• The City will actively enforce the Housing Maintenance Code.  

Neighborhood Development 
• Continue City programs promoting pride in the community.  

• The City will pPartner with Anoka County to implement affordable housing programs at all 

three affordability levels in Spring Lake Park. 

Rental Housing 
• Continue to utilize Spring Lake Park’s existing rental licensing program to promote safe rental 

housing.   

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-10 

 

REVISIONS REQUIRED 

 

Task Completed Needed / notes Advisory
? 

Who Done
? 

Provide number of single 
family, multifamily, 
manufactured homes 

Table 3-1 Table 3-1  Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

Include components of 
existing housing 
assessment in narrative of 
existing housing needs 

Page 3-5 and 3-6   Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

Acknowledge city’s share of 
region’s need for additional 
affordable housing between 
2021 and 2030 

Table 3-7   Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

Show staging of land 
development anticipated by 
land use category (min 8 
du/acre, or combo of 6 
du/acre and 12 du/acre) 

Reference Land Use Chapter   Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

Reference when and why 
tools listed in letter would 
be used (e.g. site 
assembly, tax abatement, 
etc.) 

Listed, include when and why on 
page 3-8 

Available 
Housing Tools 

 Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

Met Council will require a 
local Fair Housing Policy to 
draw on LCA 2019 awards 

 (Advisory) Y Polacek, 
Carlson 

 

Consider proactive versus 
reactive rental housing 
policy 

 (Advisory) Y Polacek, 
Carlson 

 

For map of home values, 
consider changing value for 
80% AMI to $243,500 

 Done Y Duan, 
Polacek 

Y 

Number of affordable 
housing units in Table 3-3 
aren’t near number 
provided by Met Council in 
Existing Housing 
Assessment 

 Figure 3-2 Y Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

When will city research and 
consider ADU policy? 

Page 3-5 Regulatory Y Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-1 

 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and 

Community Facilities 
 

INTRODUCTION 

Parks, trails, and open space provide many important benefits for cities and their residents. In addition to 

providing recreational opportunities for residents, these facilities also contribute to the health of a 

community by providing active living opportunities for residents. Parks may also foster a sense of 

community by providing gathering space and programs for residents.  

Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities Goals and Policies 

The following goals were developed to guide development of the City’s parks, trails, and community 

facilities plan:  

1. Maintain and provide adequate funding for the existing park and trail network in Spring Lake Park. 

2. Complete sidewalk and trail gaps to establish a connected network for pedestrian and bicycle 

facilities in the city. 

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals. It is the policy of the 

City of Spring Lake Park to:  

1. Complete renovations of park buildings to meet the needs of park users and visitors. 

2. Explore the renovation or relocation of City Hall to better meet the needs of constituents.  

3. Work with Anoka County to rebuild Osborne Trail in areas needing pavement maintenance.  

4. Collaborate with other agencies and partners to implement new regional or multi-jurisdictional 

trails in Spring Lake Park and neighboring communities.  

EXISTING PARKS AND TRAIL NETWORK 

Parks 

The City of Spring Lake Park includes six City parks, as illustrated in Figure 4-1. These six parks and their 

amenities are listed in the following sections. There are no federal, state, or regional parks in the city.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-2 

 

 

Figure 4-1: Existing Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 

 

Able Park 

Able Park is located at 8200 Able Street NE. This park is approximately 6.7 acres, and includes 

playgrounds, a picnic shelter, a basketball court, volleyball courts, and athletic fields. In the winter 

months, the park features a hockey rink. 

Triangle Park 

Triangle Park is located at the intersection of Able Street and Manor Drive. This 2.5-acre park includes a 

pond, walking path, and picnic tables. 

Lakeside Lions Park 

Lakeside Lions Park is located at 79th Avenue and Pleasant View Drive. This 11.8-acre park is jointly 

owned with the City of Mounds View, and includes a swimming beach and beach house, picnic shelter 

and equipment, playground equipment, athletic fields, volleyball courts, and a walking path.  

Sanburnol Park 

Sanburnol Park is located at 520 Sanburnol Drive. This 5.7-acre park includes playground equipment and 

athletic fields. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-3 

 

Terrace Park 

Terrace Park is located at 79th Avenue and Terrace Road. This 10.7-acre facility includes playground 

equipment, picnic shelters, and athletic fields. The park also features a basketball court, tennis courts, 

and a skate park. In the winter months, the park features a hockey rink. 

Westwood Park 

Westwood Park is located at 8450 Westwood Road. This 1.8-acre park includes playground equipment, a 

picnic shelter, and one athletic field.  

Trails 

The City of Spring Lake Park has two major bicycle trail facilities and two pedestrian trail facilities within 

the community, providing opportunities for recreation and transportation to walk and bike in Spring Lake 

Park. These trails include: 

• A paved, east-west trail along Osborne Road from University Avenue NE to the city limits, 

continuing into Mounds View 

• A paved north-south trail from 81st Ave NE to Osborne Road, along Old Central Avenue. 

• A pedestrian bridge at 80th Avenue NE, crossing Highway 65 to Spring Lake Park High School 

• Internal, paved recreational pedestrian trails at Lakeside Lions Park. 

There are currently no regional trails in Spring Lake Park. 

Existing trails are mapped in Figure 4-1. 

Sidewalks 

There are also numerous concrete sidewalks for use by pedestrians along several streets within the City, 

as well as a pedestrian bridge over Highway 65 near 80th Ave. Pedestrian facilities and safety are 

discussed further in Chapter 5: Transportation.  

PLANNED PARKS AND TRAILS 

Planned Parks 

The City of Spring Lake Park is entirely built out and there are no new planned parks in the city. 

Planned Trails 

Local Trails 

The City has planned one bicycle lane along 81st Avenue NE, from County Highway 10 to Old Central 

Avenue. This bike lane will be added by restriping 81st Ave NE from a 4-lane to a 3-lane road. There are 

no other planned on- or off-street bicycle facilities in the city. 

The Minnesota Department of Transportation is currently performing a safety audit and corridor study of 

Highway 65, scheduled for completion in 2019 and 2020 respectively. Both programs are aimed in part at 

improving safety for those walking and bikingpedestrians and bicyclists along and across the corridor. 

The MnDOT recently completed the re-construction of a bicycle and pedestrian overpass of Highway 65 

between Spring Lake Park High School and the eastern side of the corridor. The City is working to 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-4 

 

improve the effectivenessity of the overpass by reviewing options to possibly extend the trail to 81st 

Avenue NE as a connection to Mounds View.   

Regional Trails 

The Metropolitan Council has not identified any regional trails or regional trail search corridors within the 

City in the 2040 Regional Parks Policy Plan. The Metropolitan Council has identified a regional bicycle 

trail network (RBTN) through their 2040 Transportation Policy Plan. The RBTN identifies possible trail 

alignments and search areas for future regional trails. The Met Council has identified one regional trail 

opportunity in Spring Lake Park: a north-south trail along County Highway 10 and Highway 65. The Met 

Council has also identified two corridor search areas, through the northwestern part of the city (Tier 2) 

and at the southwest corner of the city (Tier 1).One Tier 1 Regional Bicycle Transportation Network 

(RBTN) Alignment exists in the City, along Highway 65.  

Planned bicycle facilities and RBTN alignments are mapped in Figure 4-2.  

 

Figure 4-2: Planned Parks and Recreation 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Community facilities include public and semi-public uses, such as schools, medical facilities, and 

government buildings. In general, the City’s existing facilities are in good condition and adequate for the 

City’s needs. However, space is limited at City Hall, which houses the City's administrative offices and 

police department. The City Hall is also used regularly for City Council, Planning and Zoning Commission, 

and Parks and Recreation Commission meetings; community education classes; and community 

meetings. Space at City Hall is very limited, as there are few available conference rooms for staff 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-5 

 

meetings or adequate space for larger community meetings. Expansion or relocation of the existing City 

Hall will likely be necessary to accommodate additional space needs.  

In addition to the physical facilities discussed above, the City provides a number of services and activities 

to promote the health, safety, and welfare of its residents. The City provides recycling services to 

residents through curb pick-up and recycling days. The City also cooperates with Anoka County to 

encourage residents to utilize the Anoka County Household Waste Facility (3230 101st Ave NE, Blaine). 

The City communicates with residents through a variety of means, including the Spring Lake Park News 

in the Park quarterly newsletter, city website, and cable access channel. Other facilities that serve Spring 

Lake Park residents include county libraries, medical clinics and hospital, a community college (in Coon 

Rapids), a technical school (in Anoka), transit facilities including local and commuter bus routes and the 

Northstar commuter train station in Fridley, public safety, and senior services. Although some facilities are 

located outside City boundaries, they are provided directly to residents of Spring Lake Park from the City 

or through the City’s collaboration with other agencies.  

Existing community facilities are illustrated in Figure 4-1. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

The City’s CIP, including an itemized list for parks, recreation, and community facilities is included in the 

Appendix of this Plan.  

 

 

 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-6 

 

REVISIONS REQUIRED 

 

Task Completed Needed / notes Advisory? Who Done? 

Include CIP for local parks 
and open space facilities 

Added as Chapter 8 to draft 
chapters folder 

Referenced Capital 
Improvement Plan 

 Buchholtz Y 

Confirm regional trail / tier 1 
language 

Updated narrative under “Local 
trails” and “Regional trails” 
 

Local Trails, 
Regional Trails 

 Polacek, 
Carlson 

Y 

Add segment under “Local 
Trails” re 65 safety audit, 
overpass 

Added narrative under “Planned 
trails” > “Local trails” 

Request 
confirmation from 
Dan on language 
under Local Trails 

 Buchholtz Y 

Add planned trail 
alignments on Planned 
Parks and Rec Map 

Added lines along 65 between 
school and 81st, and along 85th in 
NE corner of city 

Request map changes  

 

Figure 4-2.  Buchholtz 

Duan 

Y 

 

file://///us0291-ppfss01/workgroup/1938/active/193803934/Reports/Met%20Council%20required%20revisions/Trails%20Changes.pdf


City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-1 

 

Chapter 5: Transportation

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of the Transportation Chapter is to identify and analyze all components of a community’s 

transportation network. This includes roads, transit, aviation, non-motorized vehicles (i.e. bicycle and 

pedestrian), freight and goods movement, and supporting land use. The plan develops strategies, 

goals, and policies for the development of a multi-modal transportation system. 

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals. The City of Spring 

Lake Park’s transportation policies include the following: 

1. Continue regular maintenance of existing City streets, including reconstruction of older 

streets as necessary. 

2. Continue to collaborate with Anoka County on any future County-initiated improvements to 

County Roads. 

3. Establish a program of access management in connection with the redevelopment of 

commercial land industrial properties. 

4. Require that a developer of any proposed structure 200 feet above ground level notify the 

Federal Aviation Administration and the Minnesota Department of Transportation 

(Aeronautics) of the potential to affect navigable airspace. 

5. Cooperate with the Metropolitan Council and the Metropolitan Airports Commission on 

potential development within the influence area of the Anoka County-Blaine Airport. 

6. Reclassify the functional classification of 81st Avenue to a Collector. 

7.6. Cooperate with Metro Transit and Anoka County to accommodate Spring Lake Park’s transit 

needs. 

8.7. Limit access on Principal and A-Minor Arterials to improve the safety and capacity of these 

roadways. 

ROADWAY SYSTEM 

Functional Classification 

The roadway system represents a significant component of a city’s overall transportation network. 

Roadways are classified according to their function in the roadway network. This functional 

classification system creates a hierarchy of roads for the orderly movement of traffic from local 

residences and businesses to the highway system. A roadway functional classification is important, 

as it will determine a road’s design features such as width, speed limit, intersection control, and 

access.  

Roads are classified according to their degree of access and mobility:  

• Principal arterials are at the top of the roadway system hierarchy. The primary purpose of 

principal arterials is to provide for mobility. Therefore, access on these roadways is limited. 

These routes are intended for travel from one region to another. Ideally, these roadways are 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-2 

 

spaced every two to three miles in developed areas. Trunk Highway 65 is an example of a 

principal arterial in Spring Lake Park.  

• Minor arterials are directly below principal arterials in the roadway network hierarchy. These 

roadways also maintain a focus on mobility, but mobility is sacrificed somewhat to allow for 

more access. These routes provide for travel access a region and between principal arterials. 

Minor arterials are ideally spaced every one-half to one mile in developed areas. Trunk 

Highway 47 is an example of a minor arterial in Spring Lake Park.  

• Collectors provide a balance between mobility and access. Residences and businesses often 

have direct access to these roads. Collectors also collect traffic from local roads and 

distribute it onto higher order roadways. Collectors also provide for shorter trips within a small 

area. Ideally, collectors are spaced every ¼ to ¾ mile in developed areas. An example of a 

collector roadway in Spring Lake Park is Osborne Road. 

• Local streets fall at the bottom of the roadway hierarchy, as their primary function is to 

provide for local access to homes and businesses. Local roads are intended for short trips. 

Typically, they connect to other local streets and to collector roadways. An example of a local 

street in Spring Lake Park is Filmore Street NE.  

The functional classification of Spring Lake Park roadways is presented in Figure 5-1, including 

projected 2040 traffic volumes (AADT) from the Anoka County 2040 Transportation Plan. 

 

Figure 5-1: Transportation Classification 

Capacity 

Existing (2017) traffic volumes provided by the Metropolitan Council are shown on Figure 5-1 as well. 

The City currently experiences congestion at the intersection of 81st Ave and TH 65 and at the 

intersection of 81st Ave and TH 47. This congestion is mainly caused by the timing of the signals at 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-3 

 

these intersections. No additional lanes are planned at either of these intersections. No additional 

lanes are planned for any Principal or A-Minor arterial road. 

Safety 

Anoka County 2040 Transportation Plan 

In the 2040 Transportation Plan Update, Anoka County identifies vehicle crashes from 2006 to 2015. 

In this 10-year period, there were 165 fatal crashes and 33,989 total crashes in the county. Of fatal 

and serious crashes, distracted driving accounted for approximately 20 percent and intoxicated 

driving accounted for approximately 18 percent.  

Between 2011 and 2015, there was one fatal crash at Pleasant View Drive and County Road 10 and 

three serious crashes at Osborne Road and MN 65, 81st Ave and MN 65, and at Pleasant View Drive 

and County Road 10. 

Pedestrian Safety Along University Ave NE 

In the past few years, there have been numerous pedestrian fatalities along University Avenue NE, 

bordering Spring Lake Park and Fridley. High speed traffic, wide roadways, and limited crossing 

facilities make the area dangerous for people walking or running in the area. Some of the recent 

incidents along the corridor include: 

• Pedestrian fatality, University Avenue and 81st Street, October 14, 2016 

• Pedestrian fatality, University Avenue and 57th Avenue, January 16, 2017 

• Pedestrian fatality, University Avenue and Osborne Road, March 1, 2018 

The Minnesota Department of Transportation is currently working with local jurisdictions to 

understand the issues for pedestrians and motorists along the corridor. See Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, 

and Community Facilities for more details on these studies.  

The City will continue to cooperate with the appropriate agencies on safety issues that arise. 

Access Management 

Access management is a critical component of a safe and efficient roadway system. By limiting 

access points, safety and mobility are increased on roadways. It is also important to balance mobility 

needs with local access needs. As discussed above, access is limited on higher mobility roadways 

such as Principal Arterials, while local streets provide increased access and decreased mobility.  

Anoka County has access spacing guidelines to address access, safety, and mobility issues on 

roadways within the County. These guidelines for urban roadways are presented below in Table 5-1.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-4 

 

Table 5-1: Access Spacing Guidelines (source: Anoka County) 

Functional 
Classification 

Route Speed 
(MPH) 

Intersection 
(Primary Full 
Movement) 

Spacing 
(Conditional 
Secondary) 

Signal 
Spacing 

Private 
Access 

Principal 
Arterial 

50 – 55 1 mile ½ mile 1 mile Subject to 
conditions 40 – 45 ½ mile ¼ mile ½ mile 

< 40 1/8 mile 300 – 600 ft ¼ mile 

Expressway 50 – 55 1 mile ½ mile  1 mile 

Minor Arterial 50 – 55 ½ mile ¼ mile ½ mile 

40 – 45 ¼ mile 1/8 mile ¼ mile 

<40  1/8 mile 300 – 660 feet ¼ mile 

Collector and 
Local 

50 – 55  ½ mile ¼ mile ½ mile 

40 – 45  1/8 mile N/A ¼ mile 

< 40  1/8 mile 300 – 660 feet 1/8 mile 

 

Pedestrian and Bicycle System 

The City of Spring Lake Park includes two bicycle trails. The first runs east to west along Osborne 

Road (CSAH 8/CR 108) across the length of the City. The second trail runs along Central Avenue 

from the Fridley City boundary to 81st Avenue NE. The City maintains both trails. There are also 

numerous concrete sidewalks for use by pedestrians along several streets within the City, as well as 

a pedestrian bridge over Highway 65 near 80th Ave.  

The City does not include any regional trails. The Northtown Mall generates bicycle and pedestrian 

traffic. 

Additional information and maps about trail facilities in Spring Lake Park can be found in Chapter 4: 

Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities. 

Transit 

Transit is an important aspect of a multi-modal transportation system. The Metropolitan Council has 

identified the City of Spring Lake Park as “Market Area II3.” Service options within Market Area II 3 

include express routes, urban radial, suburban local, circulators, and general public dial-a-ride. Anoka 

County Volunteer Transportation and Anoka County Traveler Dial-A-Ride provide paratransit service 

in the Countyareis primarily commuter express bus service with some fixed-route local service 

providing basic coverage. General-public dial-a-ride services are available where fixed-route service 

is not viable..  

The City of Spring Lake Park is currently served by several bus routes, all of which are operated by 

Metro Transit (Figure 5-2): 

• Route 10 is a local service bus route on Central Avenue (TH 65) between Blaine and 

downtown Minneapolis. In Spring Lake Park, this route runs detours off Central Avenue to 

Osborne Road NE and Monroe St NE. with branches on both Monroe Street NE/Osborne 

Road and University Avenue NE. It terminates at the Northtown Transit Center where it 

connects with eight other bus lines service much of Anoka County. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-5 

 

• Route 59 is a limited stop bus route that runs along Central Avenue (TH 65) between Coon 

Rapids and downtown Minneapolis.  In Spring Lake Park, this route provides service on 81st 

Avenue and Osborne Road. , making stops at key intersections including at Osborne Road 

and 81st Ave NE during weekday peak hours.  

• Routes 25 and 825 offer Monday through Saturday service along 85th Avenue NE on the 

northeastern edge of the City.  

• Route 824 is limited stop bus route that runs along University Avenue (TH 47) between Coon 

Rapids and downtown Minneapolis. In Spring Lake Park, this route provides service on 

Osborne Road and Monroe Street. 

• Route 854 is an express bus route that runs along University Avenue (TH 47) between Coon 

Rapids and downtown Minneapolis. 

 

Figure 5-2: Transit System 

There no regional transit corridors planned for the City of Spring Lake Park. There are no planned 

dedicated busways or MnPASS lanes in Spring Lake Park. However, the City will work with the 

Metropolitan Council to determine future transit services consistent with the city’s transit market area.  

Central Avenue BRT 

In 2011 and 2012, Metro Transit studied regional corridors including Central and University Avenues 

for suitability of future Bus Rapid Transit lines. The Central/University alignment, if built, would travel 

along University Avenue (the western limit of Spring Lake Park) with) approximately three stops along 

that border.  

This segment of University Avenue along the Spring Lake border- is generally two lanes in either 

direction with shoulder lanes on both sides and a ditch in the middle. Near intersections, the shoulder 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-6 

 

lanes generally converts to a right-turn lanes and space in the ditch converts to left-turn lanes as 

illustrated in Figure 5-3. In the case that BRT is built along this segment of University, the shoulders 

could theoretically be converted to bus-only lanes. Transit priority at traffic signals may also improve 

performance. Any alterations to University Avenue must be coordinated with the Anoka County 

highway jurisdiction.     

 

Figure 5-3: General existing condition of University Avenue (not to scale) 

Although the study concluded that BRT along this corridor would improve reliability and travel speed, 

no further studies or implementation dates have been set. The City of Spring Lake Park will work with 

Metro Transit to continue to improve transit access in the area.  

There are no park-and-ride facilities located within Spring Lake Park. A facility is located nearby at the 

Northtown Mall Transit Center, which is just north of Spring Lake Park’s north boundary at University 

Avenue and Sanburnol Drive. 

Aviation 

There are no existing or planned aviation facilities within Spring Lake Park. However, the City is 

within the Anoka County-Blaine Airport (ANE) Influence Area. Therefore, it may be affected by 

planning considerations such as airport zoning, environmental mitigation, airport development and 

economic impacts, ground access needs, infrastructure requirements, and general land use 

compatibility. Development of an airspace zoning ordinance to meet the State standards is the 

responsibility of a joint airport/community zoning board.  

In 2010, the Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC) adopted a comprehensive plan for the Anoka 

County – Blaine Airport. The Plan serves as a framework for future development of the airport and 

compatibility with surrounding communities. The Plan also includes forecasts for air travel out of the 

airport with flight operations falling rising from 86,83887,429 annual flights in 2007 2015 to 

79,56088,025 flights in 20252035. As such, the airport is estimated to be under capacity and no 

expansions are plannedhave adequate runway capacity to support all future activity scenarios, and 

no new airfield expansion is currently planned.  

The City will notify the Federal Aviation Administration of any alteration exceeding 200 feet above 

ground level or other construction or alteration as required by Federal Regulation Title 14, Part 77. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-7 

 

Freight 

While there are some industrial and auto-oriented uses in Spring Lake Park, major trucking or freight 

infrastructure is limited. Heavy commercial average annual daily traffic is mapped in Figure 5-1. There 

are no railroads, rail terminals, or barge terminals in Spring Lake Park. 

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS ZONES 

The City of Spring Lake Park falls entirely within TAZsTAZ Zones 250, 251, 252, and 253 fall entirely 

within the City of Spring Lake Park. A small portion of the City is located partially within TAZ 248 and 

249Portions of TAZ Zones 248, 249, and 1703 are also within Spring Lake Park. All related TAZs are 

illustrated in Figure 5-4. Population, household, and employment forecasts are allocated to the 

appropriate TAZs in Table 5-2. These projections assume linear growth within the time period 

between 2014 2010 and 2040. The City of Spring Lake Park is entirely built-out with very few vacant 

parcels. New population growth in each of the six intersecting TAZs will be the result of residential 

and mixed-use redevelopment. More information about demographics and population growth and 

future land use changes are included in Chapters 1 and 2, respectively.  

Table 5-2: Population, Household, and Employment Projections by TAZ (source: Metropolitan Council) 

Population 
TAZ 2010 2020 2030 2040 

248 23 33 35 38 

249 246 291 311 335 

250 1369 1409 1478 1566 

251 624 709 740 787 

252 1983 1929 1999 2092 

253 1989 2139 2227 2353 

1703 178 190 210 230 

Total 6412 6700 7000 7401 

Households 

TAZ 2010 2020 2030 2040 

248 13 14 15 16 

249 155 169 182 201 

250 559 604 622 662 

251 278 300 311 335 

252 755 812 836 886 

253 837 902 934 999 

1703 75 80 100 100 

Total 2672 2881 3000 3199 

Employment 

TAZ 2010 2020 2030 2040 

248 51 45 51 58 

249 834 800 826 845 

250 1265 1423 1453 1469 

251 197 275 301 333 

252 220 282 306 335 

253 366 376 413 459 

1703 66 80 100 100 

Total 2999 3281 3450 3599 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-8 

 

 

Figure 5-4: Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ) 

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS 

The City of Spring Lake Park will continue to cooperate with neighboring municipalities, Anoka and 

Ramsey Counties, and Mn/DOT to address access and mobility on local, county, and state roadways.  

• There are no planned improvements to principle arterials in Spring Lake Park under the TPP 

2040 current revenue scenario. 

• There are no planned interchange improvements in Spring Lake Park. 

There are no proposed MnPASS lanes within the limits of Spring Lake Park. The nearest proposed 

lane is along Interstate-35W approximately two2 miles to the east of city-limits. The proposed project 

involves the addition of one lane to I-35W between Roseville and Lino Lakes to accommodate a 

MnPASS shared high-occupancy vehicle and transit lane. No coordination between the City of Spring 

Lake Park and MnDOT is expected on this project.  

Within the next 10-year planning period, the City will evaluate the condition of Garfield Street NE and 

Hayes Street NE for possible resurfacing. With the development of Hy-Vee, intersection 

improvements and signal timing will be implemented at 81st and MN 65. The City will continue its 7-

year crack seal and seal coat maintenance program, as well as repairing any problem areas that 

arise. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-9 

 

 

REVISIONS REQUIRED 

 

Task Completed Needed / notes Advisory? Who Done? 

Identify existing and future 
number of lanes for 
principal and A-minor 
arterials 

Hongyi updated map to show 
number of lanes 

“No additional lanes planned”  

Figure 5-1  Polacek, Duan Y 

Map forecasted 2040 
traffic volumes 

Done Use Anoka County 
plan 

 Duan Y 

Chapter 5 has TAZ 
allocations higher than city 
total forecasts that need to 
be fixed 

Created new TAZ table Table 5-2  Polacek, Duan Y 

Provide TAZ allocations for 
#1703, fix map issue for 
#250 

Added 1703 to table. Fixed 
Map 

Done  Duan Y 

Include map of TAZ 
allocations that only 
include portion in city 

 Figure 5-4  Duan Y 

Identify planned 
improvements in Current 
Revenue Scenario and 
include 35W 
improvements currently 
underway 

 Under Planned 
Improvements 

 Polacek Y 

Identify existing or 
proposed future MnPASS 
lanes 

Narrative added at end of 
chapter, page 5-7 

Under Planned 
Improvements 

 Polacek Y 

Reference potential and 
previous work conducted 
on Central Ave BRT 

Narrative added under “Central 
Avenue BRT” heading 5-4 

Under Central 
Avenue BRT 

 Polacek Y 

Reference availability of 
bus only shoulder 
lanes/transit advantages 
on University 

Narrative added under “Central 
Avenue BRT” 5-5 

Under Central 
Avenue BRT 

 Polacek Y 

Include discussion of bike 
and peds, including 
analysis of connections 
over major physical 
barriers and ped system in 
relation to community 
designation 

See map. Add 85th, 81st, and (to 
be studies/added: Osborne 
river to Rice Creek. City 
currently spending money on 
Osborne. Confirm with Dan 

Under Pedestrian 
and Bicycle System 

 Polacek, 
Buchholtz 

Y 

In discussion of changing 
81st Ave NE to a collector, 
include description that 
change requires approval 
by Transportation Advisory 
Board (TAB) 

Removed Policy 6 “Reclassify 
the functional classification of 
81st Avenue to a collector”  

done 

 

Y Polacek Y 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-10 

 

Table 5-1 – correct 
guideline timelines so they 
aren’t all the same 

Replaced table 5-1 with County 
numbers 

Table 5-1 Y Polacek Y 

1st paragraph under 
Transit- reflect reference 
that whole city is in Transit 
Market Area 3 

Replaced “II” with “3”  Under Transit Y Polacek Y 

Replace language 
describing transit service 
with proposed language in 
letter  

Changed description “primarily 
commuter express bus 
service…” 

Under Transit Y Polacek Y 

Note routes 10, 59, 25, 
and 825 as described in 
letter 

Edited descriptions of each 
route on 5-4 

Under Transit Y Polacek Y 

Better match descriptions 
on page 5-4 with Transit 
Map on 5-7 

 Under Transit, and 
Figure 5-2 

Y Polacek Y 

MAC: Consider adding an 
exhibit showing the extents 
of the ANE Influence Area 

Skipping/advisory   Y Duan  

MAC: Second paragraph: 
we have newer (2015) 
aviation activity forecasts 
for ANE if you would like to 
update aircraft operations 
projections in this section. 
Summary supplied 

 Updated to 2015 
observed and 2035 
forecasted flights 

Under Aviation 

Y  Y 

MAC: Also, consider 
revising the last sentence 

Updated “As such, the airport is 
estimated to have adequate 
runway capacity to support all 
future activity scenarios, and no 
new airfield expansion is 
currently planned.”  

-done Y Polacek Y 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-1 
 

Chapter 6: Water Resources 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The Public Facilities Chapter provides information on the City’s Sanitary Sewer, Water Supply, Local 

Surface Water Management Plans, and community facilities. These plans have been revised to meet new 

Metropolitan Council and watershed district standards. Information on these water resource plans are 

included as appendices to the comprehensive plan.  

Water Resources Goals and Policies 
The City of Spring Lake Park recognizes the importance of water resources for human and ecological 

services. The following goals and policies address surface water, sanitary sewer, and water supply.  

1. Provide adequate sewer, water, and stormwater management to serve existing and new 

development. 

2. Construct and operate existing and new public facilities to protect the health, safety, and welfare 

of residents. 

3. Develop a plan consistent with the Metropolitan Council’s Regional Development Framework. 

Policies and Action Steps: 

1. Prohibit the installation of new on-site sewer systems.  

2. Encourage new development that is consistent with the capacity of the sewer and water systems.  

3. Continue the City program to require polyvinyl chloride sewer pipes for all new development and 

redevelopment, as well as for all repairs.  

4. Continue the city’s CIPP sanitary sewer lining program.  

5. Continue implementation of Best Management Practices of City MS4 permit administered by the 

MPCA, including adoption of necessary ordinances.  

6. Cooperate with the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources-Ground Level Monitoring 

Program to monitor groundwater levels and establish municipal baseline groundwater level 

information. 

SANITARY SEWER 
The Met Council has prepared forecasts for sewer flow to assist communities in their comprehensive 

planning efforts. All uses within Spring Lake Park are sewered. There are no public or privately-owned 

Community Wastewater Treatment Systems or individual SSTS in operation within Spring Lake Park. The 

sewer forecasts for Spring Lake Park are presented in Table 6-1.  

Table 6-1: Sewer Forecasts 

 2010 2020 2030 2040 

Sewered Population 6,412 6,700 7,000 7,400 

Sewered Households 2,672 2,880 3,000 3,200 

Sewered Employment 3,000 3,280 3,450 3,600 

Average Annual Wastewater Flow (MGD) 0.55 0.54 0.56 0.58 

Allowable Peak Hourly Flow (MGD) 2.24 2.21 2.21 2.27 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-2 
 

There are no trunk sewers through the City of Spring Lake Park.  

The City of Spring Lake Park is served by the Met Council Interceptor 4-SL-534. Currently this interceptor 

has an available capacity of 0.79 mgd to provide for the City’s long-term sewer and water needs. The Met 

Council has not scheduled any improvements for this interceptor within the Plan’s 2040 timeframe. A 

small area of the City near Laddie Lake is served by Interceptor 4-NS-522 in Blaine. 

Spring Lake Park’s wastewater flow is treated at the Metropolitan Waste Water Treatment Plant in St. 

Paul. Several improvements are planned for this facility through 2040 to provide for additional plant 

capacity and to meet required permit standards. 

The Met Council has established I/I goals for all communities discharging wastewater to the Metropolitan 

Disposal System.  Spring Lake Park’s current I/I goal is 2.52 mgd as provided by MCES on October 21, 

20182.46.  According to the Met Council’s metering program, the City’s adjusted average annual flow is 

0.640.66 mgd. To reduce I/I and to achieve its I/I goal established by the Met Council, the City has 

adopted an ordinance to prohibit the direct connection of sump pumps to the sanitary sewer system. 

Additionally, portions of the City’s sewer are televised regularly in a rotation. During these inspections, 

services exhibiting constant clear water flows are noted and investigated for possible illegal connections. 

The City requires that all new sewer construction and all repairs of existing sewers be constructed with 

polyvinyl chloride pipes and the City completes regular sanitary sewer lining maintenance projects.  

As demonstrated in Table 6-1, the community’s sewer flow is anticipated to increase very slightly by the 

year 2040. However, the City does not anticipate any capacity issues with the existing sewer system.  

There are no planned trunk sewer systems requiring connection to the Metropolitan Disposal System. 

The City is working on intercommunity service agreements and will supply them when they are executed.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-3 
 

 

Figure 6-1 - Sanitary System Map 

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 
Spring Lake Park is within the Rice Creek Watershed District and the Coon Creek Watershed District. 

After watershed district plans are developed and approved, local communities are required to complete a 

local surface water management plan. The City of Spring Lake Park has updated their Local Surface 

Water Management Plan (LSWMP) to reflect the needs of the watershed districts and the Metropolitan 

Council. A full copy of the plan is included in the appendices of this comprehensive plan. 

WATER SUPPLY PLANNING 
The City of Spring Lake Park is served by four wells, with two treatment facilities. The City completed a 

Wellhead Protection Plan, which was approved by the Minnesota Department of Health in May 2018. The 

Plan establishes Drinking Water Supply Management Areas (DWSMA) around city wells and establishes 

goals for the protection of its water supply over the next ten years. The City also participates in the Anoka 

County Municipal Wellhead Planning Group, a joint power organization that promotes cooperation and 

coordination among area cities to protect the area’s water supply.  

In lieu of completing a Water Supply Plan Chapter, the City has completed the DNR’s Emergency and 

Conservation Water form, which fulfills the requirements of the Water Supply Chapter. This form is 

included in the Appendix of this plan for reference. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-4 
 

 

Figure 6-2: MCES Sanitary Sewer Meter Service Areas 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-5 
 

REVISIONS REQUIRED 
 

Ch6: Water (LWMP) 

Task Solution Required? Done? 

Submit final LWMP in the Appendix if it is 
available at the time of formal submittal 

Attached in appendix   
Y 

Table 8.3 – include funding sources for capital 
improvement projects and activities 

See table 8.3 of LWMP in appendix Y  
Y 

List future projects that may occur in plan’s time 
span 

See table 8.3 of LWMP in appendix Y Y 
 

 

Wastewater  

Task Solution Required? Done? 

Include table detailed forecasts in 10-yr 
increments and broken down by areas 

Table 6-1Table 6-1Table 6-1   Y 

Provide GIS files with info on existing sanitary 
system 

Figure 6-1   Y 

Include tables of capacity and design flows for 
trunk sewers 

“There are no trunk sewers through the City of 
Spring Lake Park” under Sanitary SewerSanitary 

SewerSanitary Sewer section 

 Y 

Include copies of intercommunity service 
agreements and accompanying map 

“Will be sent when executed”  Y 

Include tables of local system info like capacity 
and design flows, assignment of 2040 growth 
forecasts 

Table 6-1Table 6-1Table 6-1  Y 

Define goals/policies/strategies related for 
preventing and reducing excessive I/I, 
requirements and standards for minimizing I/I, 
describe sources, extent, and significance of 
existing I/I in the system, describe implantation 
plan for preventing and eliminating excessive I/I  

See 5th paragraph under Sanitary SewerSanitary 

SewerSanitary Sewer 

 Y 

Describe any new trunk systems that require 
connections 

Last paragraph under Sanitary SewerSanitary 
SewerSanitary Sewer 

 Y 

 

SSTS 

Task Solution Advisory? Done? 

Confirm there are no public or privately-owned 
Community Wastewater Treatment Systems or 
individual SSTS in operation 

Confirm. Y Y 

 

 

 





City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-1 

 

Chapter 7: Implementation 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The implementation of the Comprehensive Plan does not end with adoption.  The City's official controls, 

the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations, will ensure day to day monitoring and enforcement of 

the policy plan.  The regulatory provisions of both ordinances, as revised, will provide a means of 

managing development in the City in a manner consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  The City's 

Capital Improvements Program will enable needed improvements identified in the plan to be programmed 

and implemented in a timely and cost-effective manner. 

OFFICIAL CONTROLS 
As part of the planning process, the City will evaluate its land use controls and consider amendments to 

existing ordinances to eliminate inconsistencies with the Comprehensive Plan, enhance performance 

standards, protect public and private investments, and to conform to mandatory State and Federal 

regulations.  

The plan identifies a number of specific changes to the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations 

which need to be considered by the City.  Some of these changes include: 

• Changes in the zoning map to make the zoning of property consistent with the policies and 

provisions of this plan. The City’s existing zoning map is presented in Figure 7-1.  

o Completed by September 2019. 

• Completion of a local surface water management plan. 

o Completed by December 2018. 

• Adopt an ordinance prohibiting the connection of sump pumps to the sanitary sewer system. 

o Completed by December 2019. 

Zoning Map and Categories 
Zoning is the primary regulatory tool used by local governments to implement their comprehensive plan. 

In 2015, the City of Spring Lake Park revised their entire zoning code to reflect changes in the community 

and provide a more concise and user-friendly code document. The code consists of the official zoning 

map and the supporting ordinance text. The official map divides the community into a series of zoning 

districts and the text describes regulations for the use of land within these districts. Zoning districts in 

Spring Lake Park are mapped in Figure 1-1. Zoning districts are listed in the following section. Full 

regulations for all districts can be found in the City’s Code of Ordinances §153. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-2 

 

 

Figure 1-1 - Zoning Map 

Residence Districts 
R-1, single-family residence district: This district is intended to preserve, create, and enhance areas of 

exclusive single-family development where that development fits the Comprehensive Plan, and where 

two-family dwellings may be allowed by conditional use permit. 

R-2, medium density residence district: This district is intended to provide for medium density 

residential use which stresses individually owned dwelling units to provide a transition between lower and 

higher densities and between incompatible land uses. 

R-3, multiple-family residence district: This district is intended to provide a residence area in which 

multiple dwellings not exceeding six units per building may be allowed, except by conditional use permit. 

Non-residence Districts 
C-1, shopping center commercial district: This district is intended to provide a district which may be 

applied to land in single ownership or unified control for the purpose of developing a planned business 

center with a unified and organized arrangement of buildings and service facilities at key locations which 

are suitable for the use and which are centrally located within the residential area they are intended to 

serve. 

C-2, neighborhood and service commercial district: This district is intended for the convenience of 

persons residing in nearby residential areas and is limited in its function to accommodating the basic day-

to-day shopping needs of the typical family. It is also intended as a business district which may be located 

in separate areas adjacent to shopping centers and thus help to keep the basic retail areas compact and 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-3 

 

convenient, and in other separate areas to provide a district which may be located in close proximity to a 

major thoroughfare or highway in order that highway service types of land use can be provided. 

C-3, office commercial district: This district is intended to provide a district which is related to and may 

reasonably adjoin high density or other residential districts for the location and development of 

administrative office buildings, medical uses, and related office uses which are subject to more restrictive 

controls. 

I-1, light industrial district: The light industrial district is established to provide employment opportunities 

and to group industrial and certain uses in locations accessible to highways for the safe and effective 

movement of raw materials, finished products, and employees. 

PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESS 
The Comprehensive Plan is intended to be general and flexible; however, formal amendments to the Plan 

will be required when land use elements are revised. Periodically, the City should undertake a formal 

review of the plan to determine if amendments are needed to address changing factors or events in the 

community.  While a plan amendment can be initiated at any time, the City should carefully consider the 

implications of the proposed changes before their adoption. 

When considering amendments to this plan, the City will use the following procedure: 

1. Amendments may be initiated by land owners, land developers, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission or the City Council. 

2. The Planning and Zoning Commission will direct the City staff to prepare a thorough analysis of 

the proposed amendment. 

3. The City staff will present to the Planning and Zoning Commission a report analyzing the 

proposed changes, including their findings and recommendations regarding the proposed plan 

amendment. 

4. The Planning and Zoning Commission will decide whether or not to proceed with the proposed 

amendment.  If a decision to proceed is made, a formal public hearing will be held on the 

proposed amendment. 

5. Following the public hearing the Planning and Zoning Commission will make a recommendation 

to the City Council. 

6. The City Council will receive the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission and 

make a final decision on whether to adopt the amendment. 

All amendments to the plan must be submitted to the Metropolitan Council for review prior to 

implementation. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
The City will annually update a five-year capital improvements program which identifies major capital 

expenditures consistent with the Plan. The program should include public and private investments in 

infrastructure, park and trail development expenditures, infrastructure repair and replacement, building 

maintenance and repair and other planned capital expenditures. Like the Comprehensive Plan, the capital 

improvements planning process is ongoing and subject to modification, as appropriate. Spring Lake 

Park’s Capital Improvement Program is included in the Appendix, for reference.  

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-4 

 

IMPLEMENTATION ELEMENT REQUIREMENTS  

Item Solution Done? 

Describe public programs, devices, actions used 
to implement plan 

  

Describe timeline for implementation of each 
element 

  

Include CIP for transportation CIP Added in Appendix  

Include CIP for sewers “  

Include CIP for parks “  

Include CIP for water supply “  

Include CIP for open space facilities “  

Describe sequence of major public investments   

Describe official controls, zoning, subdivision, 
water supply, private sewer 

  

Schedule needed changes to official controls   

Include zoning map Figure 1-1  

Describe zoning categories Under Residence Districts, Non-residence Districts  

Describe where zoning must be updated to follow 
plan 

May be question for Dan  

 

 



City of Spring Lake Park
2019-2023 Capital Improvement Plan - Projects by Department

Department Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

Administration
Photocopier -$  -$  -$  22,000$               -$  22,000$              

City Council Technology 5,600$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  5,600$                

Computer System Replacement 173,813$             -$  -$  -$  -$  173,813$            

Administration Total 179,413$             -$  -$  22,000$               201,413$            

City Facilities
City Hall Renovation/Expansion -$  -$  500,000$             7,768,597$         -$  8,268,597$         

Gun Range Renovation/Range Filtration System -$  -$  -$  500,000$             -$  500,000$            

City Facilities Total -$  -$  500,000$             8,268,597$         -$  8,768,597$         

Code Enforcement
Code Enforcement Vehicle Replacement -$  24,500$               -$  -$  -$  24,500$              

Code Enforcement Total -$  24,500$               -$  -$  -$  24,500$              

Police Department
Inner Evidence Room Expansion 10,000$               -$  -$  -$  -$  10,000$              

Patrol Squad Car Light Bars -$  -$  15,000$               -$  -$  15,000$              

Photocopier -$  -$  -$  -$  20,000$               20,000$              

Squad Car Replacement 36,521$               36,521$               36,521$               36,521$               36,521$               182,605$            

Police Department Total 46,521$               36,521$               51,521$               36,521$               56,521$               227,605$             

Fire Department
Engine 1 Mini -$  -$  27,020$               -$  -$  27,020$              

Engine 3 Mini -$  -$  -$  -$  27,659$               27,659$              

Staff Vehicles 5,596$                 -$  5,276$                 -$  5,836$                 16,707$              

Tanker 3 Refurbishment and Apparatus Equipment -$  30,137$               -$  -$  -$  30,137$              

Rescue 4 Refurbishment -$  -$  -$  18,546$               -$  18,546$              

Utility 14 Replacement -$  -$  -$  18,546$               -$  18,546$              

Station 4 Roof -$  -$  -$  3,997$                 -$  3,997$                

Station Infrastructure 5,196$                 3,797$                 3,997$                 4,197$                 4,397$                 21,584$              

Radios 10,392$               -$  -$  -$  -$  10,392$              

RMS/Computer 1,599$                 1,599$                 1,599$                 1,599$                 3,198$                 9,593$                

Fitness Equipment -$  -$  1,999$                 -$  -$  1,999$                

Personal Protective Equipment 3,198$                 3,517$                 3,677$                 3,837$                 3,997$                 18,226$              

Apparatus Equipment -$  3,597$                 4,796$                 5,436$                 -$  13,830$              

Auto Extraction 3,198$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  3,198$                

Washers and Dryers -$  -$  -$  -$  5,996$                 5,996$                

SCBA -$  -$  23,422$               -$  24,941$               48,364$              

Fire Total 29,178$               42,648$               71,786$               56,158$               76,023$               275,793$             



Department Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
Park & Recreation

Osborne Road Trail Reconstruction - Phase II 60,000$               -$  -$  -$  -$  60,000$              

Osborne Road Trail Reconstruction - Phase III -$  150,000$             -$  -$  -$  150,000$            

Terrace Park - Trees - west fence line 3,000$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  3,000$                

Terrace Park Sidewalk, Sod, Seating Area, etc. -$  5,000$                 -$  -$  -$  5,000$                

Terrace Park Sport Court Resurface 6,000$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  6,000$                

Terrace Park Playground Equipment - Pre-school 50,000$               -$  -$  -$  -$  50,000$              

Terrace Park Ballfield Lighting -$  -$  -$  25,000$               -$  25,000$              

Terrace Park Gaga Ball Pit 1,500$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  1,500$                

Able Park Basketball Court Resurface 3,000$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  3,000$                

Able Park Building -$  -$  -$  -$  425,000$             425,000$            

Able Park Hockey Rink Concrete/New Boards -$  -$  60,000$               -$  -$  60,000$              

Sanburnol Park Grills/Picnic Tables -$  3,000$                 -$  -$  -$  3,000$                

Sanburnol Park Sidewalk -$  -$  -$  6,000$                 -$  6,000$                

Sanburnol Park Irrigation Expansion -$  -$  -$  30,000$               -$  30,000$              

Sanburnol Park Playground Equipment -$  -$  100,000$             -$  -$  100,000$            

Sanburnol Park Ballfield Lighting -$  -$  -$  60,000$               -$  60,000$              

Sanburnol Ballfield Player Bench Sunscreens -$  -$  -$  -$  42,000$               42,000$              

Triangle Park Monument Sign 15,000$               -$  -$  -$  -$  15,000$              

Triangle Park Irrigation 20,000$               -$  -$  -$  -$  20,000$              

Triangle Park Grills 1,200$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  1,200$                

Westwood Park Flower Garden/Rain Garden -$  -$  2,000$                 -$  -$  2,000$                

Westwood Park Half-Court Basketball Court -$  -$  10,000$               -$  -$  10,000$              

Westwood Park Irrigation -$  -$  -$  -$  50,000$               50,000$              

Lakeside Lions Park Irrigation Expansion 8,000$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  8,000$                

Lakeside Lions Park Flower Garden -$  5,000$                 -$  -$  -$  5,000$                

Lakeside Lions Park Rain Garden -$  4,000$                 -$  -$  -$  4,000$                

Lakeside Lions Park Ballfield Lighting -$  -$  -$  60,000$               -$  60,000$              

Parks and Recreation Total 167,700$             167,000$             172,000$             181,000$             517,000$             1,204,700$         

Public Works
Ballfield Groomer 30,000$               -$  -$  -$  -$  30,000$              

Replace Dump Truck/Plow/Sander/Wing 210,000$             -$  -$  -$  -$  210,000$            

Air compressor -$  30,000$               -$  -$  -$  30,000$              

Wood Chipper -$  40,000$               -$  -$  -$  40,000$              

Bobcat -$  -$  -$  40,000$               -$  40,000$              

Parks Mower -$  -$  -$  -$  60,000$               60,000$              

One-ton truck with Box & Plow -$  -$  -$  -$  60,000$               60,000$              

Front end loader with Plow & Wing -$  -$  -$  -$  250,000$             250,000$            

Sealcoating 85,000$               85,000$               85,000$               85,000$               85,000$               425,000$            

Public Works Total 325,000$             155,000$             85,000$               125,000$             455,000$             1,145,000$         



Department Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
Public Utilities

Pickup Replacement 40,000$               40,000$               40,000$               40,000$               40,000$               200,000$            

SCADA System Upgrade -$  -$  30,000$               -$  -$  30,000$              

Televising Camera -$  -$  125,000$             -$  -$  125,000$            

Arthur Street Treatment Plant Rehabilitation 200,000$             -$  -$  -$  200,000$            

Water Main Lining -$  -$  -$  200,000$             200,000$             400,000$            

Fridley/SLP Water Interconnect -$  60,000$               -$  -$  -$  60,000$              

Sewer Lining 150,000$             150,000$             150,000$             150,000$             150,000$             750,000$            

Public Utilities Total 390,000$             250,000$             345,000$             390,000$             390,000$             1,765,000$         

Storm Water
Fillmore Street/83rd Avenue Pond -$  50,000$               -$  -$  -$  50,000$              

81st Avenue/Garfield Area Pond 320,000$             -$  -$  -$  -$  320,000$            

Pleasant View Drive/79th Avenue -$  15,000$               -$  -$  -$  15,000$              

Pond Dredging -$  -$  -$  -$  50,000$               50,000$              

Storm Water Total 320,000$             65,000$               -$  -$  50,000$               435,000$             

GRAND TOTAL 1,457,812$         740,669$             1,225,307$         9,079,276$         1,544,544$         14,047,608$       



Fund/Dept Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

101 - General Fund
Police Department Squad Car Replacement 36,521$              36,521$              36,521$              36,521$              36,521$              182,605$           

Fire Department Engine 1 Mini -$  -$  27,020$              -$  -$  27,020$             

Fire Department Engine 3 Mini -$  -$  -$  -$  27,659$              27,659$             

Fire Department Staff Vehicles 5,596$                -$  5,276$                -$  5,836$                16,707$             

Fire Department Tanker 3 Refurbishment and Apparatus Equipment -$  30,137$              -$  -$  -$  30,137$             

Fire Department Rescue 4 Refurbishment -$  -$  -$  18,546$              -$  18,546$             

Fire Department Utility 14 Replacement -$  -$  -$  18,546$              -$  18,546$             

Fire Department Station 4 Roof -$  -$  -$  3,997$                -$  3,997$               

Fire Department Station Infrastructure 5,196$                3,797$                3,997$                4,197$                4,397$                21,584$             

Fire Department Radios 10,392$              -$  -$  -$  -$  10,392$             

Fire Department RMS/Computer 1,599$                1,599$                1,599$                1,599$                3,198$                9,593$               

Fire Department Fitness Equipment -$  -$  1,999$                -$  -$  1,999$               

Fire Department Personal Protective Equipment 3,198$                3,517$                3,677$                3,837$                3,997$                18,226$             

Fire Department Apparatus Equipment -$  3,597$                4,796$                5,436$                -$  13,830$             

Fire Department Auto Extraction 3,198$                -$  -$  -$  -$  3,198$               

Fire Department Washers and Dryers -$  -$  -$  -$  5,996$                5,996$               

Fire Department SCBA -$  -$  23,422$              -$  24,941$              48,364$             

General Fund Total 65,699$              79,169$              108,307$            92,679$              112,544$            458,398$            

225 - Park Acquisition & Improvements
Park & Rec Terrace Park - Trees - west fence line 3,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  3,000$               

Park & Rec Terrace Park Ballfield Lighting -$  -$  -$  25,000$              -$  25,000$             

Park & Rec Terrace Park Gaga Ball Pit 1,500$                -$  -$  -$  -$  1,500$               

Park & Rec Sanburnol Park Grills/Picnic Tables -$  3,000$                -$  -$  -$  3,000$               

Park & Rec Sanburnol Park Sidewalk -$  -$  -$  6,000$                -$  6,000$               

Park & Rec Sanburnol Park Irrigation Expansion -$  -$  -$  30,000$              -$  30,000$             

Park & Rec Sanburnol Park Playground Equipment -$  -$  100,000$            -$  -$  100,000$           

Park & Rec Sanburnol Park Ballfield Lighting -$  -$  -$  60,000$              -$  60,000$             

Park & Rec Sanburnol Ballfield Player Bench Sunscreens -$  -$  -$  -$  42,000$              42,000$             

Park & Rec Triangle Park Irrigation 20,000$              -$  -$  -$  -$  20,000$             

Park & Rec Triangle Park Grills 1,200$                -$  -$  -$  -$  1,200$               

Park & Rec Westwood Park Flower Garden/Rain Garden -$  -$  2,000$                -$  -$  2,000$               

Park & Rec Westwood Park Half-Court Basketball Court -$  -$  10,000$              -$  -$  10,000$             

Park & Rec Westwood Park Irrigation -$  -$  -$  -$  50,000$              50,000$             

Park & Rec Lakeside Lions Park Irrigation Expansion 8,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  8,000$               

Park & Rec Lakeside Lions Park Flower Garden -$  5,000$                -$  -$  -$  5,000$               

Park & Rec Lakeside Lions Park Rain Garden -$  4,000$                -$  -$  -$  4,000$               

Park Acquisition/Improvements Total 33,700$              12,000$              112,000$            121,000$            92,000$              370,700$            

City of Spring Lake Park
2019-2023 Capital Improvement Plan - Projects by Funding Source



Fund/Dept Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

400 - Revolving Construction Fund
Police Department Inner Evidence Room Expansion 10,000$              -$  -$  -$  -$  10,000$             

Park & Rec Osborne Road Trail Reconstruction - Phase II 60,000$              -$  -$  -$  60,000$             

Revolving Construction Fund Total 70,000$              -$  -$  -$  -$  70,000$              

403 - Capital Replacement
Public Works Air Compressor -$  30,000$              -$  -$  -$  30,000$             

Public Works Bobcat -$  -$  -$  40,000$              -$  40,000$             

Park & Rec Terrace Park Sidewalk, Sod, Seating Area -$  5,000$                -$  -$  -$  5,000$               

Park & Rec Terrace Park Sport Court Resurface 6,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  6,000$               

Park & Rec Terrace Park Playground Equipment - Pre-K 50,000$              -$  -$  -$  -$  50,000$             

Park & Rec Able Park Basketball Court Resurface 3,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  3,000$               

Park & Rec Able Park Hockey Rink Concrete/New Boards -$  60,000$              -$  -$  60,000$             

Park & Rec Triangle Park Monument Sign 15,000$              -$  -$  -$  -$  15,000$             

Capital Replacement Total 74,000$              35,000$              60,000$              40,000$              -$  209,000$            

407 - Sealcoating
Public Works Sealcoating 85,000$              85,000$              85,000$              85,000$              85,000$              425,000$           

Sealcoating Fund Total 85,000$              85,000$              85,000$              85,000$              85,000$              425,000$            

410 - Lakeside/Lions Park Improvement
Park & Rec Lakeside Lions Park Ball Field Lighting -$  -$                -$  60,000$              -$  60,000$             

Lakeside/Lions Park Improvement Total -$  -$  -$  60,000$              -$  60,000$              

425 - Storm Sewer Rehab
Storm Water Fillmore Street/83rd Avenue Pond -$  50,000$              -$  -$  -$  50,000$             

Storm Water 81st Avenue/Garfield Area Pond 320,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  320,000$           

Storm Water Pleasant View Drive/79th Avenue -$  15,000$              -$  -$  -$  15,000$             

Storm Water Pond Dredging -$  -$  -$  -$  50,000$              50,000$             

Storm Sewer Rehab Total 320,000$            65,000$              -$  -$  50,000$              435,000$            



Fund/Dept Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

600 - Public Utility Renewal and Replacement
Public Utilities Pickup Replacement 40,000$              40,000$              40,000$              40,000$              40,000$              200,000$           

Public Utilities SCADA System Upgrade -$  -$  30,000$              -$  -$  30,000$             

Public Utilities Televising Camera -$  -$  125,000$            -$  -$  125,000$           

Public Utilities Arthur Street Treatment Plant Rehabilitation 200,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  200,000$           

Public Utilities Water Main Lining -$  -$  -$  200,000$            200,000$            400,000$           

Public Utilities Fridley/SLP Water Interconnect -$  30,000$              -$  -$  -$  30,000$             

Public Utilities Sewer Lining 150,000$            150,000$            150,000$            150,000$            150,000$            750,000$           

Public Utility Renewal/Replacement Total 390,000$            220,000$            345,000$            390,000$            390,000$            1,735,000$         

2018 Equipment Certificate
Administration Photocopier -$  -$  -$  22,000$              -$                22,000$  

Administration Computer System Replacement 173,813$            -$  -$  -$  -$  173,813$           

City Council Council Technology 5,600$                -$  -$  -$  -$  5,600$               

Code Enforcement Code Enforcement Vehicle Replacement -$  24,500$              -$  -$  -$  24,500$             

Police Department Patrol Squad Car Light Bars -$  -$  15,000$              -$  -$  15,000$             

Public Works Ballfield Groomer 30,000$              -$  -$  -$  -$  30,000$             

Public Works Dump Truck/Plow/Sander/Wing 210,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  210,000$           

2018 Equipment Certificate Total 419,413$            24,500$              15,000$              22,000$              -$  480,913$            

EDA Lease Revenue Bond
Park & Rec Able Park  Building -$                -$  -$  -$  425,000$            425,000$           

EDA Lease Revenue Bond Total -$  -$  -$  -$  425,000$            425,000$           

Other Aids/Grants
Public Works Wood Chipper (SLP Lions) -$  40,000$              -$  -$  -$  40,000$             

Police Department Photocopier (2023 Equip Cert) -$  -$  -$  -$  20,000$              20,000$             

Public Works Parks Mower (2023 Equip Cert) -$  -$  -$  -$  60,000$              60,000$             

Public Works Front End Loader with Plow & Wing (2023 Equip Cert) -$  -$  -$  -$  250,000$            250,000$           

Public Works One ton truck with Box and Plow (2023 Equip Cert) -$  -$  -$  -$  60,000$              60,000$             

Public Utilities Fridley/SLP Water Interconnect (City of Fridley) -$  30,000$              -$  -$  -$  30,000$             

Parks and Rec Osborne Road Trail Reconstruction - Phase III -$  150,000$            -$  -$  150,000$           

Other Aids/Grants Total -$  220,000$            -$  -$  390,000$            610,000$            



Fund/Dept Project 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

Capital Improvement Plan Bond
City Facilities City Hall Renovation/Expansion -$                -$  500,000$            7,768,597$         -$  8,268,597$        

City Facilities Gun Range Renovation/Range Filtration System -$                -$  -$  500,000$            -$  500,000$           

Capital Improvement Plan Bond -$  -$  500,000$           8,268,597$        -$  8,768,597$        

Grand Total 1,457,812$         740,669$            1,225,307$         9,079,276$         1,544,544$         14,047,608$       





 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  June 13, 2019 

Subject: First Amendment to Tower Lease Agreement – T-Mobile 
 
T-Mobile has requested an amendment to the Tower Lease Agreement for their antenna 
installation at the Able Park Water Tower.  T-Mobile is requesting 253 square feet of additional 
ground space to install a backup generator and platform equipment to service their antenna 
equipment.  The agreement grants that request and in exchange for that request, the rent will 
increase by $300/month. 
 
City Attorney Thames negotiated this agreement with T-Mobile, in consultation with Community 
Wireless Consultants, and feels the rent increase is fair to all parties. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the tower lease amendment. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 













































 

 

Memorandum 

 

June 11, 2019 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Chief Ebeltoft 

Re: Purchase of New Traffic Speed Notification System/Signs 

 

Mayor and City Council Members,  

I had received requests from you and residents regarding deployment of some type of “Traffic Speed 

Notification System/Signs” for areas in our community that would not be conducive to utilizing our 

speed trailer. The reasons included but are not limited to: Short distances of vehicle traffic (One block or 

less), ability to park speed trailer at location (No area of roadway to allow parking) and potential of 

speed trailer being damaged by traffic flow. 

I have been researching a possible remedy for these issues for the past seven months. I believe that I 

have found an acceptable remedy that will accommodate our residents’ concerns and your request for 

some type of “Traffic Speed Notification System/Signs”.  

The product that I am recommending is the All Traffic Solutions, Shield 12 Radar Speed Display. It is 

15.5” by 13.5”, it attaches to any street sign post easily and is secured by a key lock to prevent it from 

being stolen. It will have many of the same features as our speed trailer but will be considerably smaller 

and be able to be deployed in areas in our community that the speed trailer would not. This unit would 

be able to be deployed at a location for 10 to 14 days before requiring to be recharged. The recharging 

of the units would require them to be removed and brought to the police department for recharging.  

 



There would be an ongoing annual cost after the first year of $1,500.00 that would cover the App Traffic 

Suite (12mo); Equip Management, Reporting, Image Management, Alerts, Mapping and Premier Care, 

this ongoing cost would then need to become part of our annual budget as a line item. 

It would be my recommendation that we purchase two units, I have been able to secure a $400.00 

credit per unit for a total of $800.00 for this purchase. It would be my recommendation that the cost for 

this purchase be taken from the “Traffic Education Fund 248”.  I have attached a quote for what two of 

these units would cost. 

I am looking for authorization from the Mayor and City Council to facilitate the purchase of the above 

stated units, utilizing the “Traffic Education Fund 248” as the source of payment, the total cost for this 

purchase would be $8,280.00.  

 

Sincerely,  

Douglas M. Ebeltoft 

Director of Public Safety/Chief of Police 

Spring Lake Park Police Department 

 



QUOTE  Q-43260

Questions contact:

DATE/TIME:  6/11/2019 
3:32:44 PM

PAGE 
NO:   
1

Mail Purchase 
Orders to:        
3100 Research Dr. 
State College, PA 
16801

 All Traffic Solutions Inc.
12950 Worldgate Dr.,  
Ste 310

 Herndon, VA 20170
 Phone: 814-237-9005
 Fax: 814-237-9006

Tax ID: 25-1887906
    MANUFACTURER:
All Traffic Solutions 
Paul Madsen
571-321-5459
x 
pmadsen@alltrafficsolutions.co
m

Independent Sales Rep:

BILL TO:           SHIP TO:
Spring Lake Park Police Dept.- MN
1301 Eighty First Avenue Northeast
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432

Attn: Doug Ebeltoft

          Spring Lake Park Police Dept.- MN
          1301 Eighty First Avenue Northeast
          Spring Lake Park, MN                55432

PAYMENT TERMS:  
Net 30

CUSTOMER:   212410 CONTACT:    (763) 792-7200

ITEM NO: DESCRIPTION: QTY: EACH: EXT. 
PRICE:

4000561 Shield 12 Speed Display; base unit w/ mounting 
bracket

2.00 $2,995.00 $5,990.00

4000647 App, Traffic Suite (12mo); Equip Mgmt, 
Reporting, Image Mgmt, Alerts, Mapping and 
PremierCare

2.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00

4000767 Base Model CREDIT, speed display; requires min 
1 yr TraffiCloud Traffic Suite

2.00 ($600.00) ($1,200.00
)

4000874 All Options Activation: Bluetooth, Traffic Data, 
Violator Alert, Pictures, ($3000 Value, requires 
Traffic or Message Suite)

2.00 $0.00 $0.00

4001384 PROMO Base Model CREDIT, speed display; 
requires min 1 yr TraffiCloud Traffic Suite, valid 
until 8/31/2019

2.00 ($400.00) ($800.00)

4000743 LFP Power kit, 10Ah battery (2), internal power 
controller, charger w/connector

2.00 $595.00 $1,190.00

4000750 App, Mobile User Interface perpetual license (only 
1 req'd per account)

1.00 $0.00 $0.00

4000641 Shipping Common Carrier 2.00 $50.00 $100.00

SALES 
AMOUNT:

$8,280.00Special Notes:

Shield 12 – Radar speed display with data collection - 2 SHIPPING:



LFP batteries with charger - Mount plate with hardware – 
“YOUR SPEED” sign – All features activated perpetually 
(Bluetooth – data – strobe and camera) – 1 year of 
TraffiCloud web services (remote management – imaging 
– data – alerts – mapping - reports and Premier Care 
warranty) – shipping and training.

TOTAL: $8,280.00

Duration:  This quote is good for 60 days from date of issue.
Shipping Notes:  Unless shipping charges are specifically indicated, prices are FOB Destination.  Shipping charges may apply

Taxes:  Taxes are not included in quote.  Please provide a tax exempt certificate or sales tax will be applied.
Warranty:  Unless otherwise indicated, all products have a three year warranty from date of sale.  Warranty extensions are a component of some applications that are 
available at time of purchase. A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month will be applied to overdue balances. GSA GS-07F-6092R

Authorization:  By Signing below I indicate that I am authorized to commit my organization to the above.

              
Print Name, Title Signature     Date

          



The Engineer’s Report will be provided at the Council meeting.  





 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



Ongoing Global Uncertainties &
Declining Treasury Yields bode well
for Municipal Bonds

Market Commentary - May 31, 2019

by Greg Johnson

The U.S. – China trade dispute continues to dominate headlines with little expectation for quick improvement. 
As global economic uncertainty persists, and the full impact of U.S. tari� hikes have yet to kick in, investors
have �ed to bonds driving yields down to multi-year lows.   

The 10-year treasury yield has dropped to its lowest level since September 2017 reaching 2.16% Friday, May 31. 
Also, the yield spread between 3-month and 10-year treasuries, often monitored to determine the early signs
of a pending recession, fell to as low as -16 basis points (1 basis point is .01%), the largest negative spread
since 2007.  

The Wall Street Journal (“WSJ”) reported last week that investors seeking higher yields have invested $8 billion
into funds focused on high-yield muni bonds (often referred to as “junk” munis) this year, the most through
May since at least 1992.  High-yield municipal bonds are non-investment grade securities, generally rated
below Baa3/BBB-.  

Muni bond funds overall have attracted $37 billion during this same period, reaching a level that is the highest
in almost three decades.  In addition to recent stock market turbulence, three primary reasons for the in�ux
are noted: 

1. Continued decline in treasury, corporate bond, and other �xed-income yields; 
2. Increased expectations the Federal Reserve might cut the fed funds rate this year; and, 
3. Recent changes to the tax code gave a boost in demand to the muni bond market since federally tax-

exempt muni bonds are one of the few remaining tax shelters. 

The WSJ article cites the municipal default rate, tracked by Moody’s Investors Service, which has been about
0.1% since 1970 as compared to the 6.7% default rate for corporate bonds.  The non-investment grade (bonds
rated below Baa3/BBB-) municipal default rate is about 2.5% per Municipal Market Analytics.  Investors seem
to be making the judgment that low-rated munis o�er one of the few opportunities to capture decent yields
with an acceptable level of risk. 

In short, municipal bond yield trends remain favorable for issuers, continuing a trend which began in March,
with declining yields across nearly the entire yield curve. 



https://www.ehlers-inc.com/


Update on Advance Refunding Legislation 
Tax-exempt advance refundings were eliminated as part of the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.  Advance
refundings occur when issuers refund bonds more than 90 days before the bonds to be refunded are �rst
callable.  The tax code had previously allowed an original issue of tax-exempt bonds to be advance refunded
once on a tax-exempt basis.   

The Bond Buyer reports that bipartisan legislation introduced recently by ten House lawmakers to reinstate
tax-exempt advance refundings faces opposition in the Senate despite support from 26 national associations
including the Government Finance O�cers Association, The National League of Cities, and National Counties
Association.   The Public Finance Network estimates that in the 5-year period from 2013 – 2017, advance
refundings saved state and local municipal taxpayers at least $12 billion.  However, the Joint Tax Committee
estimates the federal income tax revenue loss due to reinstatement of advance refundings would be $16.8
billion over ten years. The general consensus is that future infrastructure spending bills o�er the best
opportunity to attach legislation that reinstates tax-exempt advance refundings.  

Given the potential for cost savings, Ehlers encourages issuers to re-engage their representatives on the value
of these types of transactions and the potential bene�ts of restoring this option.    

Investment Trends 



 

The release of the minutes from the April 30 – May 1 Federal Open Market Committee (“FOMC”) meeting has
not caused much of a stir, which is understandable given their dated nature.  But one could �nd some reason
to interpret them as being dovish for two reasons: The Fed makes it clear that its members are not in a hurry to
raise interest rates. They note that “a number of participants” felt some of the risks and uncertainties
surrounding their outlooks for the year had moderated, including trade negotiations (which have deteriorated
noticeably since said meeting).  The key takeaway right now is that the stock market has a reasonable
assurance to think policy rates are going to remain quite low on a real and nominal basis. Fed members
observed that a patient approach in determining future adjustments to the target range for the federal funds
rate would likely remain appropriate for some time, especially in an environment of moderate economic growth
and muted in�ation pressures, despite global economic uncertainty. 

The Ehlers Investment team, with a combined �ve decades of experience, remains vigilant in monitoring
current market conditions and in the development and implementation of investment strategies. Contact an
Ehlers Investment Advisor today for assistance in evaluating your current investment portfolio and developing
a strategy for consistent and predicable revenue. 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION: PLEASE READ
The information contained herein re�ects, as of the date hereof, the view of Ehlers & Associates, Inc. (or its
applicable a�liate providing this publication) (“Ehlers”) and sources believed by Ehlers to be reliable.  No
representation or warranty is made concerning the accuracy of any data compiled herein.  In addition, there
can be no guarantee that any projection, forecast or opinion in these materials will be realized.  Past
performance is neither indicative of, nor a guarantee of, future results.  The views expressed herein may
change at any time subsequent to the date of publication hereof.  These materials are provided for
informational purposes only, and under no circumstances may any information contained herein be construed
as “advice” within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise relied
upon by you in determining a course of action in connection with any current or prospective undertakings
relative to any municipal �nancial product or issuance of municipal securities.  Ehlers does not provide tax,
legal or accounting advice.  You should, in considering these materials, discuss your �nancial circumstances
and needs with professionals in those areas before making any decisions.  Any information contained herein
may not be construed as any sales or marketing materials in respect of, or an o�er or solicitation of municipal
advisory service provided by Ehlers, or any a�liate or agent thereof.  References to speci�c issuances of
municipal securities or municipal �nancial products are presented solely in the context of industry analysis
and are not to be considered recommendations by Ehlers.

Categories:

Connect With Us
Get more information about Ehlers or speak directly with a Municipal Advisor.

    1-800-552-1171 

    info@ehlers-inc.com



How can we help?

tel:1-800-552-1171
mailto:info@ehlers-inc.com
https://www.linkedin.com/company/ehlers/?viewAsMember=true


Your Name

Email

Phone

Message

 I agree to the privacy rules and terms of service. *

SUBMIT MESSAGE

© 2019 Ehlers, Inc. All Rights Reserved

Home

Careers

Bond Sales

Bond Sales Results

Locations

https://www.ehlers-inc.com/
https://www.paycomonline.net/v4/ats/web.php/jobs?clientkey=B4B0AC69A5654B0792285450201AFBDE
https://www.ehlers-inc.com/?page_id=361
https://www.ehlers-inc.com/?page_id=360
https://www.ehlers-inc.com/locations/






































 

                                 Respectful, Innovative, Fiscally Responsible 
 

                                Government Center          2100 3rd Avenue, Suite 700          Anoka, MN 55303          www.anokacounty.us 
                                 Office: 763-323-4761        Fax: 763-324-5490 

 

                                 Affirmative Action / Equal Opportunity Employer 
 

 
Ryan Kelzenberg 
Coordinator 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Anoka County Emergency Management in partnership with Federal Signal and 

West Shore Services will be conducting a study of the Outdoor Warning Siren System in 
Anoka County.  The survey is being conducted because the existing control system for the 
Outdoor Warning Siren System has exceeded its expected service life.  We are completing 
the study to identify any potential budget impacts for your communities in the 2020 and 
2021 budget cycles.  

 
West Shore Services (Vendor) will be contacting each jurisdiction with outdoor 

warning sirens to setup a time to review each of the sites within the jurisdiction.  West 
Shore Services will need to have access inside the power and control cabinets of each sites 
to complete the review.  The projected start date for the project is June 16th and it is 
expected to require (2) weeks of field work, visiting each of the 133 outdoor warning sirens 
covering Anoka County.   

 
The final product will be a detailed report that will assist in identifying the current 

conditions at each of the outdoor warning sirens.  The report will be provided to each of 
the Jurisdictions.  The vendor will provide the current coverage of each outdoor warning 
siren using a 2D polar plot outlining the Sound Pressure Level.  The report will include 
the current equipment and conditions that exist at each of the sites and identify any 
problems or concerns that were noted during the site survey. 

 
The results of the survey will be used to evaluate options for replacing the Outdoor 

Warning Siren control system and equipment that may need to be updated at each of the 
133 sites.  We are sharing this information with you, as there may be potential budget 
impacts in your 2020 and 2021 budgets for each Outdoor Warning Siren site that is within 
your jurisdiction. 

 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding the Outdoor Warning 

Siren Study and the planned update of the Outdoor Warning Siren Control System. 
 
Thank You, 
Ryan Kelzenberg 




	Consent - Approval of Amendment #1 to CDBG and HOME Cooperating Agreement.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	New Business - Approval of First Amendment to Cellular Tower Lease with T-Mobile.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page



